
 

 

1902 - Serving Our Community for over120 Years - 2023 
WEST BAY SANITARY DISTRICT  

AGENDA OF BUSINESS  
REGULAR MEETING OF THE DISTRICT BOARD  
WEDNESDAY, NOVEMBER 8, 2023 AT 7:00 P.M.  

RONALD W. SHEPHERD ADMINISTRATION BUILDING, 
 500 LAUREL STREET, MENLO PARK, CALIFORNIA 94025 

 
Board Members General Manager 
Fran Dehn, President Sergio Ramirez  
David Walker, Secretary  
Roy Thiele-Sardiña, Treasurer District General Counsel 
Edward P. Moritz, Member Anthony Condotti, Esq. 
George Otte, Member  
  

 
 

 
AGENDA OF BUSINESS 

To participate by telephone or Zoom meeting, public comments can be made by joining Zoom 
meeting at:  
https://us06web.zoom.us/j/89866722647?pwd=O7FURvnAaXiAqzxCkpHIQZvGH138JL.1 
Meeting ID: 898 6672 2647 Passcode: 726848 
 
NOTE:  The Board may take action on any agendized item unless specifically designated a “discussion” 
item or a “report.” 
 

1. Call to Order and Roll Call 
 
2.    Communications from the Public 
 
3.    Consent Calendar 

Matters listed under this item are considered routine and will be enacted by one motion. The 
motion, seconds, and vote are applicable to any included resolutions and recorded accordingly. 
There will be no separate discussion of these items unless specifically requested by a member of 
the Board.  

A. Approval of Minutes for Regular Meeting October 11, 2023 Pg. 3A-1 
B. Approval of the Financial Activity Report Authorizing Payment of Certain Bills and Salaries 

and Consideration of Other Financial Matters thru October 31, 2023 Pg. 3B-1 
C. WBSD Operations and Maintenance Report – October 2023 Pg. 3C-1 
D. Town of Los Altos Hills Operations and Maintenance Report for Work Performed by 

WBSD – October 2023 Pg. 3D-1 
E. Town of Woodside Operations and Maintenance Report for Work Performed by WBSD 

– October 2023 Pg. 3E-1 
F. Consider Approving District Treasury Report Fourth Quarter FY 2022-23 Pg. 3F-1 
G. Consider Approving Resolution of Intention to Annex Certain Territory (118 Mapache 

Drive Portola Valley) to the West Bay Sanitary District On-Site Wastewater Disposal 
Zone and to Establish the Date and Time of Public Hearing Pg. 3G-1 

https://us06web.zoom.us/j/89866722647?pwd=O7FURvnAaXiAqzxCkpHIQZvGH138JL.1


 

 

H. Consider Approving Resolution of Intention to Annex Certain Territory (350 Grove Drive 
Portola Valley) to the West Bay Sanitary District On-Site Wastewater Disposal Zone and 
to Establish the Date and Time of Public Hearing Pg. 3H-1 

  
4.   General Manager’s Report Pg. 4-1 
 

5.   Consider Authorizing General Manager to Enter Into an Agreement for Design for the Proposed  
      Reclaimed Water Infrastructure Within the O’Brien Drive and Menlo Park Labs (previously Menlo     
      Business Park (MBP)) in Menlo Park Pg. 5-1 
 
6.   Consider Authoring Certain District Officers to Affect the Deposit and Withdrawal of Funds from  
      the Local Agency Investment Fund Pg. 6-1 
 
7.   Discussion and Direction on the West Bay and Sharon Heights Recycled Water Facility Pg. 7-1 
 

 8.   Discussion and Direction on Bayfront Recycled Water Project and Status Update Pg. 8-1 
 

 9.   Report and Discussion on South Bayside Waste Management Authority (SBWMA) including Solid  
     Waste Franchise Re-Assignment Pg. 9-1 
 

 10. Report and Discussion on Silicon Valley Clean Water (SVCW) Plant Pg. 10-1 
 

  11. Closed Session 
 

A. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – EXISTING LITIGATION 
(Cal. Govt. Code § 54956.9(d)(1)) 
Name of Case:  1740 Oak. Ave., LP v. West Bay Sanitary District, et al., - SMCSC Case 
No. 18CIV02813 
 

B.  THREAT TO PUBLIC SERVICES OR FACILITIES 
(Cal. Govt. Code § 54957) 
Consultation with:  General Counsel 

 
12. Comments or Reports from Members of the District Board and Consider Items to be Placed  

    on Future Agenda  
        

 13. Adjournment

The West Bay Sanitary District does not discriminate against persons with disabilities. Upon request, the agenda and agenda packet can be provided in a 
format to accommodate special needs. If you require a copy of the agenda or related materials in an alternative format to accommodate a disability, or if you 
wish to attend this public meeting and will require special assistance or other special equipment, please call the District at (650) 321-0384 at least five days 

in advance and we will make every reasonable attempt to provide such an accommodation. 



1902 - Serving Our Community for over 120 Years - 2023 
WEST BAY SANITARY DISTRICT  

MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE DISTRICT BOARD  
WEDNESDAY, OCTOBER 11, 2023 AT 7:00 P.M. 

 

 
1. Call to Order 

 
President Dehn called the meeting to order at    7:01     PM 

 
Roll Call        

 
BOARD MEMBERS PRESENT: President Dehn, Secretary Walker, Treasurer Thiele- 

Sardiña, Director Moritz, Director Otte 
BOARD MEMBERS ABSENT: None  
STAFF MEMBERS PRESENT: Ramirez, Heydari AND Condotti (by Zoom) 

 Others Present:   Dave Hilton – HF&H Inc., Richard Laureta – Freyer &  
      Laureta Inc. (by Zoom)   
 
2. Communications from the Public:   
 
 
3.      Consent Calendar  
 

CONSIDERATION OF ITEM(S) REMOVED FROM THE CONSENT CALENDAR 
 
 Discussion/Comments:  None.  

A. Approval of Minutes for Regular Meeting September 27, 2023  
B. Approval of the Financial Activity Report Authorizing Payment of Certain Bills and 

Salaries and Consideration of Other Financial Matters thru September 30, 2023 
C. WBSD Operations and Maintenance Report – September 2023  
D. Town of Los Altos Hills Operations and Maintenance Report for Work Performed by 

WBSD – September 2023  
E. Town of Woodside Operations and Maintenance Report for Work Performed by 

WBSD – September 2023 
F. Consider to Approve Resolution of Intention to Annex Certain Territory (315 Grove  
  Drive Portola Valley) to the West Bay Sanitary District On-Site Wastewater Disposal  
  Zone and to Establish the Date and Time of Public Hearing  

 
Motion to Approve by:  Otte      2nd  by: Thiele-Sardiña      Vote:   AYE: 5  NAY: 0 Abstain:  0 

 
 
 
 
 
   
 
 
 
 
 

3A-1



 
 

4. Consider Accepting the HF&H Solid Waste Rate Study, Set a Public Hearing for  
December 13, 2023 to Review Proposed Solid Waste and Recycling Rates for 2024 and 
Provide Staff Direction Regarding the Rate Adjustment for 2024 and Mailing the 
Proposition 218 Notice for a Public Hearing 

 
Motion to Approve by: Thiele-Sardiña  2nd  by:  Walker    Vote:   AYE: 5  NAY: 0   Abstain:  0 

 

Discussion/Comments: Dave Hilton outlined a rate model for 2024 and 2025.  
Motion to establish the 218 notice with a two year rate increase for 2024 and 2025.  1) 
Motion to Approve by: Thiele-Sardiña  2nd  by:  Walker    Vote:   AYE: 5  NAY: 0   Abstain:  0. 
2) Motion to raise rates as stated: Motion to Approve by: Thiele-Sardiña  2nd  by:  Walker    
Vote:   AYE: 4  NAY: 1   Abstain:  0 – Nay Director Moritz. 3) Motion to set public hearing for 
December 13, 2023: Motion to Approve by: Thiele-Sardiña  2nd  by:  Otte    Vote:   AYE: 5  
NAY: 0   Abstain:  0.  

 
5.       General Manager’s Report 
 

Discussion/Comments: General Manager Ramirez reported LAFCo has added over 20 
parcels to the Tax Rate Area that will no longer need to been manually billed by staff. He 
also reported the vacant Maintenance Worker position has been filled. He continued to 
report the District will begin using BidNet Direct for project bid services. He also reported on 
the Bayfront Improvements project and the arborist report and permit requirements. The 
next regular meeting is November 8th, with October 25th cancelled due to a lack of a quorum. 
The complete General Manager’s written report is in the October 11, 2023 agenda packet. 

 

6. Consider Accepting the Performance Merit Pay Program Results Oct. 1, 2022 to Sept. 
30, 2023 and  Authorize the General Manager to Disburse the Merit Payout 

 
Motion to Approve by: Thiele-Sardiña       2nd  by: Walker  Vote: AYE: 5  NAY: 0   Abstain: 0 
 
Discussion/Comments: Operations Superintendent Robert Hulsmann gave a presentation 
on the Performance Merit Pay Program results. He reported District staff achieved 95.53% 
of the goals which equals a maximum individual merit payout of $6,209.45 for each regular, 
full-time employee.   
 

7. Consider Authorizing General Manager to enter into Agreement for Engineering 
Design and  Construction Support Services to Upgrade the District’s Pump Stations 
Telemetry System 

 
Motion to Approve by: Otte     2nd  by: Walker  Vote:   AYE: 5  NAY: 0 Abstain:  0 
 
Discussion/Comments: None. 

 

8. Consider Authorizing General Manager to enter into Agreement for Engineering 
Design and Construction Support Services for the Point Repair Sanitary Sewer 
Project Phase II 

 
Motion to Approve by: Moritz      2nd  by:   Thiele-Sardiña   Vote:   AYE: 5  NAY: 0   Abstain: 0 
 

3A-2



Discussion/Comments: General Manager Ramirez reported on the need to begin 
design and award construction support services for the Point Repair Sanitary Sewer Project 
Phase II.  
 

9.  Consider Approval of a Resolution Establishing Personnel Policies 
 

Motion to Approve by: Thiele-Sardiña    2nd  by:  Moritz    Vote:   AYE: 5 NAY: 0 Abstain: 0 
 
Discussion/Comments: General Manager Ramirez reported updates to the policy to include 
additional bereavement leave days and an electric vehicle portion to the policy.  
 

10.      Report and Discussion on Sharon Heights Recycled Water Plant 
 

Discussion/Comments: General Manager Ramirez reported production in September was 
8.7MG and 4MG delivered. In addition, he reported the TESCO panel for the Avy Altschul 
pump station is expected late November or early December.  
 

11.  Discussion and Direction on Bayfront Recycled Water Project and Status Update 
 

Discussion/Comments: General Manager Ramirez reported the Recycled Water Committee 
met on October 11th and RFQs are due on October 19th. He also reported Anderson Pacific 
will begin to clear the Salt-Marsh Harvest Mouse and take Ridgeway’s Rail precautions on 
October 16th in preparation for the Levee project.   
 

12. Report, Discussion and Direction on South Bayside Waste Management Authority  
 (SBWMA) including Solid Waste Franchise Re-Assignment 
 

Discussion/Comments: Director Dehn reported there will be a reimbursement to the 
franchises that will be used for one-time adjustment for rates. In addition, authorization was 
approved to purchase the industrial office condo for the new headquarters. President Dehn 
also reported due to efforts by the District to re-assign the solid waste franchise she has 
resigned her participation in special committees in order to avoid a conflict of interest.  
 

13. Report, Discussion & Direction on Silicon Valley Clean Water (SVCW) and Discussion on  
 SVCW CIP Program and Financing 

 

Discussion/Comments: Director Otte reported a schedule has been released showing how 
the $15M in the capacity reserve fund will be expended through 2024 on the RESCUE 
project. In addition, SVCW is in the process of paying off $250M short term loans, saving 
approximately $1M.  
 

14. Comments or Reports from Members of the District Board and Consider Items to be  
 Placed on Future Agenda 
 

Discussion/Comments: Upcoming items to include a report on Commuter Benefit Program.  

 
 
15. Adjournment Time:  The meeting was adjourned at   9:15     PM 
 
     
Secretary 3A-3



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
TTTHHHIIISSS   PPPAAAGGGEEE   LLLEEEFFFTTT   IIINNNTTTEEENNNTTTIIIOOONNNAAALLLLLLYYY   BBBLLLAAANNNKKK   

3A-4



WEST	BAY	SANITARY	DISTRICT

Financial	Activity	Report

October	2023
	

Date: November 8, 2023

To: Board of Directors

From: Annette Bergeron, Personnel & Accounting Specialist

Debra Fisher, Finance Manager

 

Subject: Approve Monthly Financial Activity Report

Financial	Activity	for	the	month	of	October	2023.

Receipt Summary:

Commercial Deposits 312,353.09

Deposits in Transit/(Prior Period) 0.00

Returned Checks 0.00

Credit Cards 18,030.00

Franchise Fees 9,325.32

San Mateo County [Tax Roll] 0.00

Other Receipts 0.00

Transfers 3,000,000.00

Total Receipts 3,339,708.41

 Withdrawal Summary

Total Checks 876,590.82                  

Total Corp Cards 8,345.83                      

Total Bank Wires/ACHs 1,129,733.18               

External	Withdrawals	 2,014,669.83               

Total Internal Bank Transfers 1,700,100.00               

Total Withdrawals 3,714,769.83               

Fund Expenditure Summary by Budget Category

100 Operations 1,345,768.89

200 Capital 1,170,510.04

300 Solid Waste 2,339.64

500 Recycled Water 600,135.26

800 Silicon Valley Clean Water 596,016.00

Expenditures by Fund 3,714,769.83

Presented to West Bay Sanitary District Board of Directors for review and approval.

President

Secretary

3B-1



West	Bay	Sanitary	District
Receipts

October	2023

RECEIPT RECEIPT DESCRIPTION AMOUNT

NUMBER DATE  

463199 10/2/2023 Mears Group: Various locations, Permit 325.00

463200 10/2/2023 Town of Los Altos Hills: MSA 7/2023 & 8/2023 79,506.58

463201 10/2/2023 Town of Los Altos Hills: MSA 5/2023 42,407.19

463202 10/2/2023 Supple Homes, Inc.: 1750 Bay Laurel Dr, MP, Permit 4,363.60

463203 10/2/2023 Martinez Jesus: 109 Holland St, EPA, Permit 490.00

463204 10/3/2023 Aaron Mccoy: 4055 Bohannon Dr, MP, Permit 815.00

463205 10/3/2023 GHG Builders: 90 La Loma Dr, MP, Permit 220.00

463206 10/3/2023 WBSD: Transfer LAIF to BMO Checking 2,000,000.00

463207 10/4/2023 Discount Plumbing: 1324 Windermere Ave, MP, Permit 490.00

463208 10/5/2023 Precision Builders, Inc.: 275 Gloria Circle, MP, Permit 4,794.00

463209 10/5/2023 Pacific Penninsula Group: 358 Walsh Road, Ath, 1yr Deposit 36,851.00

463210 10/5/2023 Ray & Judy Klein: 4133 Alpine Road, PV,SSC FY 2023-24 2,226.00

463211 10/5/2023 Heida H. Earnest: 175 Los Trancos Circle, PV,SSC FY 2023-24 653.00

463212 10/5/2023 Marin B. Miller: 3350 Alpine Road, PV,SSC FY 2023-24 1,306.00

463213 10/6/2023 Void 0.00

463214 10/6/2023 Thomas Willson: 2 Meta Way, MP, Permit 690.00

463215 10/6/2023 Ma Mortenson Company: 2 Meta Way, Permit 690.00

463216 10/9/2023 Discount Plumbing: 1820 Oak Ave, MP, Permit 490.00

463217 10/9/2023 Bayshore Plumbers: 161 Corona Way, MP, Permit 490.00

463218 10/9/2023 EPS/Express Plumbing: 1140 Hermosa Way, MP, Permit 720.00

463219 10/10/2023 Eran Shtiegman: 370 Golden Oak, PV, ADU Conn &Permit partial 5,959.20

463220 10/10/2023 Bayshore Plumbers: 155 Linfield Drive, MP, Permit 690.00

463221 10/10/2023 Caccia Plumbing Inc.: 2080 Camino A Los Cerros, MP, Permit 720.00

463222 10/11/2023 Able Construction Group Inc.: 115 El Camino Real, MP, Permit 910.00

463223 10/11/2023 Christopher Jones: 210 Golden Oak Dr, PV,SSC FY 2023-24 2,226.00

463224 10/11/2023 Randall Livingston: 10 Sioux Way, PV,SSC FY 2023-24 2,226.00

463225 10/11/2023 Paymac: Public Surplus Auctions 8/2023 Unit 215 6,200.00

463226 10/12/2023 Northwall Builders, Inc.: 122 Hawthorne Dr, ATH, Permit 490.00

463227 10/12/2023 EJ Plumbing: 650 Kenwood Dr, MP, Permit 720.00

463228 10/12/2023 EJ Plumbing: 670 Kenwood Dr, MP, Permit 720.00

463229 10/13/2023 Pro Plumbing: 274 Atherton Ave, Ath, Permit 490.00

463230 10/13/2023 Brady Barksdale: 916 Laurel Ave, MP, Permit 220.00

463231 10/13/2023 EJ Plumbing, Llc: 1131 Cotton St, MP, Permit 720.00

463232 10/13/2023 Elite Rooter: Permit: 508 O'Keefe St., MP, Permit 490.00

463233 10/16/2023 Bayshore Plumbers: 151  E Creek Dr, MP, Permit 490.00

463234 10/16/2023 MD Investments: 886 Portola Rd, PV,SSC FY 2023-24 1,306.00

463235 10/17/2023 Recology: SW Franchise Fee 9/2023 9,325.32

463236 10/19/2023 WBSD: Transfer LAIF to BMO Checking 1,000,000.00

463237 10/19/2023 960 Lucky Ave LLC: 960 Lucky Ave, MP,ADU Conn 8,177.60

463238 10/19/2023 Wizard Plumbing: 659 Marsh Rd, MP, Permit 490.00

463239 10/19/2023 State Farm: 1140 Oak Ave, MP,  Settlement #18CIV02813 10,000.00

463240 10/19/2023 Travelers: 1140 Oak Ave, MP, Settlement #18CIV02813 10,000.00

463241 10/19/2023 Pacific Specialty: 1140 Oak Ave, MP, Settlement #18CIV02813 10,000.00

463242 10/19/2023 USAA: 1140 Oak Ave, MP, Settlement #18CIV02813 10,000.00

463243 10/19/2023 Allstate: 1140 Oak Ave, MP, Settlement #18CIV02813 10,000.00

463244 10/19/2023 Safeco Insurance: 1140 Oak Ave, MP, Settlement #18CIV02813 10,000.00

463245 10/19/2023 Chubb: 1140 Oak Ave, MP, Settlement #18CIV02813 10,000.00

463246 10/19/2023 Safeco Insurance: 1140 Oak Ave, MP, Settlement #18CIV02813 10,000.00

463247 10/23/2023 AKD Management: 951 Peninsula, Permit 430.00

463248 10/24/2023 Town of Woodside: MSA 7/1/2023 - 9/30/2023 15,458.72

463249 10/24/2023 L&V Lehmann Trust: 850 Los Trancos Rd, PV,SSC FY 2023-24 1,306.00

463250 10/24/2023 Michael & Leslie Lanier Trigg: 118 Mapache Dr, PV,Annex Fees 3,710.00

463251 10/24/2023 EJ Plumbing: 560 Morey Dr, MP, Permit 720.00

463252 10/24/2023 Irvingave: 61 Irving Ave, Ath, Permit 220.00

463253 10/25/2023 Michael Hara: 1995 Palo Alto Way, MP, ADU Conn / Permit 3,933.20

463254 10/25/2023 Michael Hara: 1995 Palo Alto Way, MP, Permit 230.00

463255 10/25/2023 Bayshore Plumbers: 4590 Alpine Rd, PV, Permit 490.00

463256 10/26/2023 Bayshore Plumbers: 98 Beacon St, MP, Permit 490.00

463257 10/10/2023 SLBM: 370 Golden Oak, PV, Permit (bal due) 126.00

463258 10/27/2023 Discount Plumbing & Rooter: 980 Monte Rosa Dr, MP, Permit 490.00

463259 10/27/2023 Rittenberg Andrew P Tr: 40 Gloria Cir, MP, Permit 490.00

463260 10/27/2023 Bell Plumbing Of San Mateo: 83 Mesa Ct, Ath, Permit 720.00

463261 10/30/2023 Wizard Plumbing And Drain: 331 Oakwood Pl, MP, Permit 720.00

463262 10/30/2023 Trenchfree, Inc.: 105 Blackburn Ave, MP, Permit 720.00

463263 10/30/2023 Casey Construction Inc.: 211 W Floresta Way, PV, Permit 720.00

463264 10/30/2023 Ford Living Trust: 255 Golden Oak Drive, PV,SSC FY 2023-24 2,226.00

463265 10/30/2023 Michael & Sharon Brugos:1850 Stanford Ave, MP,SSC FY 2023-24 653.00

463266 10/30/2023 Dilshani Meewella&Michael Lewis: 5 Grove,PV, SSC FY 2023-24 2,226.00

463267 10/30/2023 Dudley Kenworthy: 1234 Los Trancos Rd, PV,SSC FY 2023-24 653.00

463268 10/31/2023 Mark Hilderbrand: 140 Meadowood Dr, PV, SSC FY 2023-24 1,113.00

463269 10/31/2023 Christie Schmitz: 110 Bear Gulch Dr, PV, SSC FY 2023-24 653.00

463270 10/31/2023 Katharine Leigh Carroll: 130 Golden Oak, PV, SSC FY 2023-24 1,113.00

Total Receipts $3,339,708.41

3B-2



West	Bay	Sanitary	District
Financial	Activity	Report

Withdrawals
October	2023

Check Date Payee Purpose Amount

70994 10/5/2023 Angel Ambriz Reim OIT Certification A.Ambriz 125.00

70995 10/5/2023 Jed M. Beyer Water Reuse Conf. Travel J. Beyer 9/20/23 91.54

70996 10/5/2023 CWEA CWEA Membership Renewal - Ruperto S. 9/6/23 221.00

70997 10/5/2023 California Water Service Water Service - August-Sept 2023 60.38

70998 10/5/2023 The Concept Genie Staff Holiday Gifts 2023 1,351.25

70999 10/5/2023 FedEx FedEx: Ridley Master Inc 9/21/2023 44.69

71000 10/5/2023 Navia Benefit Solutions Commutter & FSA Fees 9/2023 & FSA Contributions PR 10/06/23 1,292.69

71001 10/5/2023 Freyer & Laureta F&L Staff Augmentation, Point Repair Phase 1 Construction Support, 1079 Levee Desi 155,244.80

71002 10/5/2023 GoldStreet Design Agency Holiday FOG Ads - YouTube 2023 4,000.00

71003 10/5/2023 Grainger Misc Parts & Supplies 7/2023 & 9/2023 269.53

71004 10/5/2023 Kimball Midwest Tools 9/2023 2,016.22

71005 10/5/2023 Grundfos CBS Inc. Grundfos Skid Pump Service - SHRWF - Annual Service 8/2023 1,880.00

71006 10/5/2023 Harben California Harben Pump Parts 7/2023 286.24

71007 10/5/2023 IEDA Consulting Fees 10/2023 814.00

71008 10/5/2023 Kaz & Associates FERRF Levee Improvements 8/2023 3,000.00

71009 10/5/2023 Mallory Co. PPE Supplies 7/2023 87.42

71010 10/5/2023 City Of Menlo Park - Water Svc Water Service - Hamilton Ave 8/18/23-9/15/23 58.37

71011 10/5/2023 Peninsula Truck Repair District Vehicle Repair Unit 220 9/2023 712.15

71012 10/5/2023 Precise Printing And Mailing Solid Waste Rates 2024 Printing & Postage 10/2023 2,339.64

71013 10/5/2023 Precision Engineering North Bay Rd/Ringwood Sewer Project Final Pmt 5% Retention 264,748.40

71014 10/5/2023 Quincy Compressor Quincy Service Call - SHRWF 9/2023 671.00

71015 10/5/2023 Recology Peninsula Services Recology Waste 2 Yard Bin - SHGCC 9/2023 249.39

71016 10/5/2023 County Of San Mateo - LAFCO SMC LAFCO Contribution FY 2023-24 21,739.00

71017 10/5/2023 County Of San Mateo LSSA Recording Fee: 124 Blackburn Ave, MP 20.00

71018 10/5/2023 County Of San Mateo LSSA Recording Fee: 6 Claremont Pl, MP 20.00

71019 10/5/2023 Secretary Of State Notary Exam 10/2023 40.00

71020 10/5/2023 Seekzen Systems IT Consulting Service 9/2023 475.00

71021 10/5/2023 Siemens Industry, Inc. Terminal Block Kit for Flow Meter 9/2023 98.44

71022 10/5/2023 State Board Of Equalization BOE Annexation Filing Fee, 27 SMC/LAFCO Parcels 7,900.00

71023 10/5/2023 Void - Check Overflow 0.00

71024 10/5/2023 Void - Check Overflow 0.00

71025 10/5/2023 Alpha Analytical Laboratories Water Quality Analysis - BFRWF & SHRWF 8,917.50

71026 10/6/2023 Void - Check Overflow 0.00

71027 10/5/2023 Pacific Gas & Electric Electric Service - Aug-Sept 2023 29,598.14

71028 10/11/2023 Bay Area Air Quality Mgmt Dist Annual Operating Permits/Renewal 685767 496.00

71029 10/11/2023 Bayside Equipment Company Generator Service & Repair - Seminary Dr. 9/7&9/11/23 420.28

71030 10/11/2023 Cleanserv Universal Services Janitorial Service 10/2023 1,075.00

71031 10/11/2023 Freyer & Laureta Willow Road PS Rehab & Stowe Lane PS Replacement Design & Const. Support 8/202 35,353.75

71032 10/11/2023 Home Depot Credit Services Pump Station Parts & Material 8/30/23 1,332.27

71033 10/11/2023 Mallory Co. Fall Protection Equipment 9/2023 938.21

71034 10/11/2023 Mccrometer Inc. Flo-Dar Maintenance Contract 9/2023 12,993.75

71035 10/11/2023 City Of Menlo Park - Water Svc Water Service - Aug-Sept 2023 98.92

71036 10/11/2023 Abila MIP Cloud  Subscription 11/4/23-12/3/23 652.67

71037 10/11/2023 Pacific Gas & Electric Electric Service - Aug-Sept 2023 593.19

71038 10/11/2023 Principal Life Insurance Dental, Vision, Life, AD&D, Disability Ins 10/2023 7,146.19

71039 10/11/2023 County Of San Mateo LSSA Recording Fee: 1140 Hermosa Way, MP 20.00

71040 10/11/2023 Sharp Business Systems Copiers Monthly Lease 10/2023 1,279.93

71041 10/11/2023 Tpx Communications District VoIP & Fiber Service 9/2023 3,270.83

71042 10/11/2023 Teamsters Local No. 350 Union Dues 10/2023 1,024.00

71043 10/11/2023 V & A Consulting Engineers Master Plan: V&A Flow Monitoring Study 9/2023 6,461.50

71044 10/11/2023 V.W. Housen & Associates Master Plan Update 7/2023-8/2023 114,960.53

71045 10/11/2023 Verizon Wireless Cellular Service - SHRWF Communications Sept-Oct 2023 65.57

71046 10/19/2023 AT&T Telemetry & Alarms 9/13/23-10/12/23 1,155.67

71047 10/19/2023 Matheson Tri-Gas Tank Rentals 9/2023 91.14

71048 10/19/2023 Airgas Usa, LLC Tank Rentals 9/2023 58.05

71049 10/19/2023 Alpha Analytical Laboratories Daily Coliform Samples - SHGCC RW Facility 9/2023 630.00

71050 10/19/2023 Veolia Water North America Water Service - 1805 Purdue Ave 9/2/23-10/1/23 73.32

71051 10/19/2023 Aqua Natural Solutions Microbe Lift 10/2023 1,211.04

71052 10/19/2023 Readyrefresh By Nestle Water Delivery 9/2023 75.13

71053 10/19/2023 Bay Alarm Alarm Monitoring Service 11/1/23-1/31/24 485.70

71054 10/19/2023 Annette Bergeron CalPERS Ed Forum  A.Bergeron 10/1/23-10/4/23 340.74

71055 10/19/2023 CWEA CWEA Memberships & Testing Fee 9/2023 737.00

71056 10/19/2023 California Water Service Water Service - Sept-Oct 2023 2,207.73

71057 10/19/2023 Calpers LongTerm Care Program LTC Witholding 10/1/23-10/15/23 67.27

71058 10/19/2023 Casey Construction Void - Point Repair & Avy Altschul Pump Station Project 0.00

3B-3



West	Bay	Sanitary	District
Financial	Activity	Report

Withdrawals
October	2023

71059 10/19/2023 Cintas Uniform Service 9/2023 & 10/2023 2,077.18

71060 10/19/2023 Du-All Safety, LLC DuAll Safety Maintenance Contract 9/2023 4,230.00

71061 10/19/2023 FedEx FedEx: Weco 10/3/2023 383.54

71062 10/19/2023 Navia Benefit Solutions FSA Contributions PR 10/20/23 1,092.69

71063 10/19/2023 Grainger Misc Parts & Supplies, Small Tools New and Replacement & AED Cabinets & Signs 10/ 1,866.60

71064 10/19/2023 H & R Plumbing & Drain Illinois Pump Station Infiltration Repair 09/2023 26,600.00

71065 10/19/2023 Mallory Co. Fall Protection Equipment 10/2023 13,988.73

71066 10/19/2023 City Of Menlo Park Tree Removal Permit 10/2023 630.00

71067 10/19/2023 City Of Menlo Park - Fuel District Vehicles Fuel 9/2023 6,662.92

71068 10/19/2023 Mission Clay Products, LLC Clay, Wye, & Tees 7/2023 2,769.24

71069 10/19/2023 Orenco Systems, Inc. New Panels for Stock and Replacement 10/2023 1,948.77

71070 10/19/2023 Pacific Gas & Electric Electric Service - Los Trancos Rd 9/14/23-10/15/23 236.37

71071 10/19/2023 PBM Chip Brush 10/2023 10.71

71072 10/19/2023 D&J Gardening Landscaping 10/2023 400.00

71073 10/19/2023 Preferred Alliance DOT Testing Admin Fees 9/2023 266.76

71074 10/19/2023 Red Wing Shoe Store Safety Boots A.Patino 10/4/23 250.00

71075 10/19/2023 County Of San Mateo LSSA Recording: 2080 Camino A Los Cerros, MP 20.00

71076 10/19/2023 County Of San Mateo LSSA Recording Fee: 1131 Cotton St, MP 20.00

71077 10/19/2023 County Of San Mateo LSSA Recording Fee: 650 Kenwood Dr, MP 20.00

71078 10/19/2023 County Of San Mateo LSSA Recording Fee: 670 Kenwood Dr, MP 20.00

71079 10/19/2023 San Mateo Lawn Mower Shop Lawn Mower and Small Engine Repair and Service 9/2023 412.09

71080 10/19/2023 Towne Ford Vehicle Repair 9/2023 Unit 209 5,655.43

71081 10/19/2023 Leaf Capital Funding Fujitsu Scanner Monthly Lease 10/2023 462.99

71082 10/19/2023 Vision Communications Co. Radio Air Time 10/2023 764.15

71083 10/19/2023 Zoll Medical Corporation AED 9/2023 1,895.12

71084 10/20/2023 Cole Erskine Reim Agreement:  Sterngold Reso.1535 Conn #04 12,769.01

71085 10/20/2023 Andrew & Bonnie Sterngold Reim Agreement:  Sterngold Reso.1535 Conn #04 12,769.01

71086 10/20/2023 Rebecca Flynn & Alexander Moissis Reim Agreement:  Flynn Moissis Kelly Conn #03 9,046.24

71087 10/20/2023 William F. Kelly Reim Agreement:  Flynn Moissis Kelly Conn #03 9,046.24

71088 10/20/2023 Tedd Corman Reim Agreement:  Sterngold Reso.1535 Conn #04 12,769.01

71089 10/26/2023 AAA Rentals Excavator Chester Easement Repair 10/2023, 50' Air Hose 10/2023 5,535.00

71090 10/26/2023 Alpha Analytical Laboratories Daily Coliform Samples - SHGCC RW Facility 10/2023 270.00

71091 10/26/2023 ReadyRefresh By Nestle Water Delivery 9/11/23-10/10/23 453.56

71092 10/26/2023 Bagg Engineers Point Repair Project Phase I Testing Services 8/2023 & 9/2023 17,215.00

71093 10/26/2023 Battery Junction Wholesale Energizer Max 529-1 6V Alkaline Battery (66) 10/2023 918.97

71094 10/26/2023 Bay Alarm Alarm Monitoring 11/01/23-01/31/24 417.00

71095 10/26/2023 Bayside Equipment Company Generator Service & Repair 10/2023 710.30

71096 10/26/2023 California Water Service Water Service - Sept-Oct 2023 108.30

71097 10/26/2023 Cintas Uniform Service 10/18/2023 1,020.12

71098 10/26/2023 Comcast Internet - Oct-Nov 2023 621.52

71099 10/26/2023 Core & Main PVC Pipe & Stop Rings 10/2023 1,616.39

71100 10/26/2023 Detection Instruments Corp. Acrulog H2S Gas Logger 10/2023 2,200.08

71101 10/26/2023 Frisch Engineering, Inc. As Needed Programming Services - SHRWF 9/2023 1,470.00

71102 10/26/2023 Grainger Misc Supplies, Parts, Tools 10/2023 804.21

71103 10/26/2023 City Of Menlo Park - Water Svc Water Service - Laurel St 9/1/23-10/6/23 709.02

71104 10/26/2023 Quadient Leasing USA Postage Meter Lease Nov 2023 - Feb 2024 268.37

71105 10/26/2023 PBM Marking Paint (4) 35.16

71106 10/26/2023 Ponton Industries Hach Flo-Dar Batteries (8) 10/2023 2,450.00

71107 10/26/2023 Redwood General Tire Co Tire Purchase Unit 224, 10/2023 1,319.94

71108 10/26/2023 Redwood City Health & Wellness DOT Physical R. Hulsmann 10/2023 85.00

71109 10/26/2023 San Mateo County Tax Collector SMC Property Tax 2023-24: Menlo Ind PS, 055-170-310, Willow PS, 055-421-150, Uni 1,013.24

71110 10/26/2023 Weco Industries Manhole Hooks (12) 8/2023, Sewer Cleaning Equipment 9/2023 4,579.67

Checks 876,590.82

3B-4



West	Bay	Sanitary	District
Financial	Activity	Report

Withdrawals
October	2023

Corporate	Cards:

GL Date Account	Name Description Amount

54028 10/24/2023 Commuter Benefits Fastrak:  Commuter Expense  8/26/23 & 9/22/23 1,950.00

54063 10/24/2023 Diesel Pump Stations Fuel Chargepoint:  EV Charging Unit 232  9/2023 80.00

54091 10/24/2023 Stationary and Office Supplies Amazon, Staples, American Flags: Office Supplies 548.32

54095 10/24/2023 Postage Postable: Sept Birthday Cards 11.85

54101 10/24/2023 Ops Supplies & Materials Auto Detailing Supplies, Home Depot, Paypal-Chargepoint, Accuform 584.51

54119 10/24/2023 Misc Contract Services Dot Processing Service: US DOT Renewal 8/30/23 189.00

54126 10/24/2023 Safety Training Safeway: Safety Gift Cards 8/25/23 125.00

54129 10/24/2023 Recruitment Indeed Jobs: Maintenance Worker Job Posting  9/01/23 286.53

54133 10/24/2023 Public Outreach Menlo Park Rotary:  Tour de Menlo Sponsorship 9/14/23 160.00

54151 10/24/2023 Fleet/Vehicle R&M Shell Oil: District Vehicle Smog Inspections (3) 8/28/23 239.85

54157 10/24/2023 Building Repairs & Maint. Home Depot:  O&M Supplies - Dryer & Regulator Repair - SHRWF 280.10

54158 10/24/2023 Computer Software R & M Duo, SolarWinds, Zoom: Subscription Renewals 147.00

54159 10/24/2023 Computer Hardware R & M Newegg:  CCTV Gator Replacement Computer 9/20/23 1,806.70

54173 10/24/2023 Dept Training & EE Development NNA Services: Notary Exam  9/12/23 607.81

54174 10/24/2023 Mgmt Conf. & District Meetings Rolling Pin Donuts, Round Table, Dutch Goose, Whole Foods, Bagel Street Café, Jeffrey 626.54

54175 10/24/2023 CWEA Conf/Section Mtgs CWEA Event:  Golf Tournament S.Ramirez 9/15/23 360.00

54176 10/24/2023 Business Meetings Donut Delite, Jeffreys Hamburgers 65.86

54191 10/24/2023 Internet Comcast:  Internet - SHRWF  9/07/23 186.76

54202 10/24/2023 Other Misc. Operating Expense UPS Store:  Notary Public 9/21/23 90.00

 	 US Bank - CalCard Payment Cards 8,345.83	

Bank	Transfers:

Date Payee Purpose Amount

10/2/2023 Paytrace Credit Card Processing Fees 719.03

10/2/2023 CalPERS Retirement Contributions PR 9/22/2023 28,986.67

10/4/2023 SVCW SVCW Monthly Operating Contribution 596,016.00

10/5/2023 ADP Payroll Taxes - Board 559.26

10/5/2023 ADP Director Fees September 2023 3,121.43

10/5/2023 ADP Payroll Taxes - 10/06/2023 40,873.27

10/5/2023 ADP Employee Payroll - Check Date: 10/06/2023 131,276.07

10/6/2023 MissionSquare Deferred Compensation 18,800.23

10/11/2023 CalPERS Health Premiums 64,841.08

10/13/2023 CalPERS Retirement Contributions PR 10/06/2023 29,052.10

10/13/2023 ADP ADP Fees 335.00

10/19/2023 ADP Payroll Taxes - 10/20/2023 37,318.64

10/19/2023 ADP Employee Payroll - Check Date: 10/20/2023 131,699.61

10/20/2023 MissionSquare Deferred Compensation 16,383.37

10/27/2023 ADP ADP Fees 296.85

10/30/2023 CalPERS Retirement Contributions PR 10/20/2023 29,268.76

10/30/2023 BMO Bank Fees 185.81

Bank	Wires 	 1,129,733.18

Date Payee Purpose Amount

10/25/2023 WBSD LAIF Account Transfer from BofW Checking to LAIF 1,700,000.00

10/30/2023 WBSD Checking Internal Transfers 100.00

Internal	Bank	Transfers 	 1,700,100.00

Summaries:

 Withdrawal	Summary

Total Checks 876,590.82

Total Corp Card 8,345.83

Total Bank Wires / ACHs 1,129,733.18

Total Internal Bank Transfers 1,700,100.00

Total	Withdrawals 3,714,769.83

3B-5



West	Bay	Sanitary	District

Expenditures	By	Vendor

7/01/2023	to	10/31/2023

Total	by	Vendor Withdrawals
Withdrawals YTD	FY	2023‐24 October	2023
AAA Rentals 6,500.64                     5,535.00                      
A-A Lock & Alarm 419.73                        -                                
Action Towing 337.00                        -                                
Abila 652.67                        652.67                         
ADP Fees 1,846.85                     631.85                         
Airgas Usa, LLC 170.23                        58.05                            
The Almanac 420.00                        -                                
Alpha Analytical Laboratories 18,092.50                  9,817.50                      
Angel Ambriz 125.00                        125.00                         
Aqua Natural Solutions 2,422.08                     1,211.04                      
AT&T 3,511.17                     1,155.67                      
Atchison, Barisone & Condotti 10,984.66                  -                                
BAGG Engineers 18,445.00                  17,215.00                   
Bank of the West 392.02                        -                                
BMO 185.81                        185.81                         
Battery Junction Wholesale 1,756.79                     918.97                         
Bay Alarm 2,664.03                     902.70                         
Bay Area Air Quality Mgmt Dist 18,491.00                  496.00                         
Bay Area Paving Co. 997.00                        -                                
Bayside Equipment Company 11,121.16                  1,130.58                      
Annette Bergeron 340.74                        340.74                         
Jed M. Beyer 91.54                           91.54                            
Brilliant Homes, Inc. 8,050.00                     -                                
CPS HR Consulting 1,395.00                     -                                
California Water Service 6,392.96                     2,376.41                      
CalPERS - Retirement 196,814.97                87,307.53                   
CalPERS - Health Premiums 194,530.71                64,841.08                   
CalPERS - 1959 Survivor Billing 878.40                        -                                
CalPERS Longterm Care Program 336.35                        67.27                            
Center For Hearing Health 680.00                        -                                
Central Square Technologies 54,180.88                  -                                
Cintas 11,399.68                  3,097.30                      
City of Menlo Park 630.00                        630.00                         
City Of Menlo Park - Fuel 20,850.85                  6,662.92                      
City Of Menlo Park - Water Svc 2,504.93                     866.31                         
Cleanserv Universal Services 3,225.00                     1,075.00                      
Comcast 2,210.80                     621.52                         
The Concept Genie 1,351.25                     1,351.25                      
Core & Main 10,048.34                  1,616.39                      
CSRMA c/o Alliant Insurance 183,131.86                -                                
CWEA 4,093.00                     958.00                         
D&J Gardening 1,200.00                     400.00                         
Detection Instruments Corp. 2,200.08                     2,200.08                      
Dell Marketing 19,403.82                  -                                
Dolphin Graphics 2,031.00                     -                                
Downtown Ford Sales 129,285.38                -                                
Du-All Safety, LLC 11,655.00                  4,230.00                      
FedEx 594.11                        428.23                         
Freyer & Laureta 632,313.34                190,598.55                 
Frisch Engineering, Inc. 1,470.00                     1,470.00                      
Victor Garcia 246.04                        -                                
Golden Gate Truck Center 461.38                        -                                
GoldStreet Design Agency 4,000.00                     4,000.00                      
Governmentjobs.Com 4,871.92                     -                                
Grainger 10,370.91                  2,940.34                      
John Green 775.00                        -                                
Grundfos CBS Inc. 1,880.00                     1,880.00                      
H & R Plumbing & Drain 26,600.00                  26,600.00                   
Hach Company 17,005.79                  -                                

3B-6



West	Bay	Sanitary	District

Expenditures	By	Vendor

7/01/2023	to	10/31/2023

Total	by	Vendor Withdrawals
Withdrawals YTD	FY	2023‐24 October	2023
Hadronex 41,496.00                  -                                
Harben California 286.24                        286.24                         
Helix Laboratories 2,764.03                     -                                
Gabriel Hernandez 900.00                        -                                
Hillyard/San Francisco 944.89                        -                                
Home Depot Credit Services 4,902.05                     1,332.27                      
Bob Hulsmann 389.45                        -                                
IEDA 2,442.00                     814.00                         
Kaz & Associates 3,000.00                     3,000.00                      
Kimball Midwest 2,795.60                     2,016.22                      
Kone Pasadena 639.20                        -                                
Las Lomitas Elementary Sd 49,000.00                  -                                
Leaf Capital Funding 1,388.97                     462.99                         
Mallory Co. 23,274.32                  15,014.36                   
Matheson Tri-Gas 246.91                        91.14                            
McCrometer Inc. 25,987.50                  12,993.75                   
Medco Supply Company 1,141.29                     -                                
MiscoWater 1,965.11                     -                                
Mission Clay Products, LLC 2,769.24                     2,769.24                      
MissionSquare 77,463.75                  35,183.60                   
Municipal Maintenance Equip. 7,348.86                     -                                
Napa Auto Parts 518.22                        -                                
Navia Benefit Solutions 7,162.14                     2,385.38                      
NeoPost 300.00                        -                                
Carrie Nevoli - Petty Cash 108.32                        -                                
NorCal Materials, Inc. 1,250.84                     -                                
Occupational Health Centers 164.00                        -                                
Omega Industrial Supply 4,968.70                     -                                
Orenco Systems, Inc. 1,948.77                     1,948.77                      
Ovivo Usa, LLC 11,171.24                  -                                
Owen Equipment Sales 3,178.73                     -                                
P&F Distributers 245.36                        -                                
PBM 45.87                           45.87                            
Pacific Gas & Electric 101,095.18                30,427.70                   
Paytrace 2,685.18                     719.03                         
Peninsula Truck Repair 2,145.43                     712.15                         
Pier 2 Marketing 500.00                        -                                
Ponton Industries 2,450.00                     2,450.00                      
Precise Printing And Mailing 2,339.64                     2,339.64                      
Precision Engineering 933,530.04                264,748.40                 
Preferred Alliance 863.28                        266.76                         
Principal Life Insurance 21,439.16                  7,146.19                      
Project Ergonomics 800.41                        -                                
Quadient Leasing USA 536.74                        268.37                         
Quincy Compressor 671.00                        671.00                         
R.A. Nosek Investigations 310.00                        -                                
Readyrefresh By Nestle 1,395.27                     528.69                         
Recology Peninsula Services 748.17                        249.39                         
Red Wing Shoe Store 1,483.47                     250.00                         
Redwood City Health & Wellness 170.50                        85.00                            
Redwood General Tire Co 5,945.49                     1,319.94                      
Todd Reese 62.52                           -                                
Rich Voss Trucking 1,245.00                     -                                
Samuel M. Rose 270.00                        -                                
SVCW - Monthly Operating Contribution 1,788,048.00            596,016.00                 
SVCW 2018 Bonds 1,249,009.22            -                                
SVCW 2021 A-B Bonds 2,308,386.67            -                                

 County of San Mateo 324.00                        140.00                         
San Mateo County Tax Collector 1,013.24                     1,013.24                      

3B-7



West	Bay	Sanitary	District

Expenditures	By	Vendor

7/01/2023	to	10/31/2023

Total	by	Vendor Withdrawals
Withdrawals YTD	FY	2023‐24 October	2023
San Mateo County Health 1,505.00                     -                                
County of San Mateo - LAFCO 21,739.00                  21,739.00                   
San Mateo Lawn Mower Shop 412.09                        412.09                         
Secretary Of State 40.00                           40.00                            
Seekzen Systems 1,900.00                     475.00                         
Sensera Systems 6,295.00                     -                                
Sharp Business Systems 3,692.49                     1,279.93                      
Siemens Industry, Inc. 2,087.97                     98.44                            
Staples Credit Plan 1,354.53                     -                                
State Board Of Equalization 7,900.00                     7,900.00                      
Stevens Creek Quarry 2,037.89                     -                                
Streamline 6,600.00                     -                                
TPX Communications 9,698.33                     3,270.83                      
Teamsters Local No. 350 3,040.00                     1,024.00                      
Teletrac Navman US 543.92                        -                                
Total Equipment Of Fremont 335.85                        -                                
Towne Ford 6,262.63                     5,655.43                      
Uline 1,416.93                     -                                
Underground Service Alert 14,084.29                  -                                
US Bank - CalCard Payment Cards 25,949.42                  8,345.83                      
V & A Consulting Engineers 24,278.50                  6,461.50                      
V.W. Housen & Associates 179,696.53                114,960.53                 
Valley Heating & Cooling 294.00                        -                                
Valley Power Systems North 566.92                        -                                
Veolia Water North America 202.42                        73.32                            
Verizon Wireless 1,789.20                     65.57                            
Vision Communications Co. 2,332.47                     764.15                         
Weco Industries 13,037.74                  4,579.67                      
West Yost & Associates 15,673.50                  -                                
Woodard & Curran 198,534.00                -                                
Zoll Medical Corporation 1,895.12                     1,895.12                      
Cole Erskine 12,769.01                  12,769.01                   
Andrew & Bonnie Sterngold 12,769.01                  12,769.01                   
Rebecca Flynn & Alexander Moissis 9,046.24                     9,046.24                      
William F. Kelly 9,046.24                     9,046.24                      
Tedd Corman 12,769.01                  12,769.01                   
Total	Vendor	Withdrawals 8,990,306.83												 1,669,821.55												

Wages	&	Payroll	Taxes
Salaries/Wages - Net Pay 798,103.94                  262,975.68                  
Directors Fees - Net Pay 9,552.67                       3,121.43                       
Payroll Taxes 246,831.48                  78,751.17                    
Total	Payroll 1,054,488.09												 344,848.28																

Total	External	Withdrawals 10,044,794.92									 2,014,669.83												

WBSD	Transfers:
WBSD LAIF Account 1,700,000.00              1,700,000.00              
WBSD Investment Accounts -                                 -                                 
Public Agency Retirement Services (PARS) -                               -                                
Other Transfers 5,100.00                       100.00                          
Total	Transfers 1,705,100.00												 1,700,100.00												

Total	Withdrawals 11,749,894.92									 3,714,769.83												

3B-8



 

 
Report to the District Board for the Regular Meeting of November 8, 2023 

 

WEST BAY SANITARY DISTRICT 
                                      AGENDA ITEM 3C 

 

To:  Board of Directors 

From: Bob Hulsmann, Operations Superintendent 

Subject: WBSD Operations and Maintenance Report – October 2023 

 

 
 

 
 

 Basin 

PM 

Pipe 

Clean- 

ing 

High 

Freq. 

PM 

Pipe 

Clean- 

ing 

Un- 

Sche. 

Pipe 

Clean- 

ing 

WBSD 

CCTV 

Insp. 

Pipe 

Patch 

Repairs 

Open 

Trench 

Repairs 

Pump 

Sta. PM 
Pump 

Sta. 

Unsch. 

Repairs 

SSO SSO Se rvice Ca lls-  Uni t 208 

         Cat. 1 Cat. Call Sch Unsch. USA's 
Month Miles Miles Miles Miles Qty. Qty. Qty. Qty.  2&3s Outs PM PM  

               
January 7.2 4.5 1.1 3.1 6 7 78 0 0 0 103 0 0 393 

               
February 7.2 5.3 1.4 3.7 2 10 60 0 0 1 75 12 0 324 

               
March 15.7 0.2 0.6 4.7 7 7 67 0 0 0 71 16 0 320 

               
April 12.1 4.4 0.4 2.7 5 9 64 0 0 1 74 4 0 305 

               
May 10.0 7.9 0.6 3.7 5 8 75 0 0 0 64 13 0 293 

               
June 16.1 0.1 0.3 1.7 0 12 69 0 0 0 56 9 0 350 

               
July 9.8 5.4 0.4 5.5 12 12 64 0 0 0 44 15 0 315 

               
August 13.4 5.4 1.2 5.1 5 6 75 0 0 0 55 4 0 351 

               
Sept. 12.9 0.2 1.0 1.2 0 2 69 0 0 0 48 8 10 248 

               
Oct. 11.6 4.2 0.5 2.8 3 8 68 0 0 0 81 4 0 246 

               
Nov.               

               
Dec               

               
Yr to date 116.0 37.6 7.5 34.2 45.0 81.0 689.0 0.0 0.0 2.0 671.0 85.0 10.0 3145.0 

               
2023 Goals 120.0 50.0 n/a 45-50 50-65 90 n/a <10 < 4 n/a n/a n/a n/a 

2022 Results 120.9 53.6 7.5 **40.3 **92 100 774 0 1 2 858 97 2 3161 
2021 Results *123 *50 8.6 **46 **55 91 834 2 0 4 944 n/a n/a 2294 

3C-1



 

 
Report to the District Board for the Regular Meeting of November 8, 2023 

 

2020 Results 134.2 51.0 8.4 29.6 72 85 754 6 0 0 1012 89 5 2362 
2019 Results 112.0 48.2 6.9 42.7 60 86 967 6 0 4 1063 75 33 2850 
2018 Results 134.2 48.5 7.4 42.1 66 63 1256 6 0 4 1139 134 89 2525 
2017 Results 126.4 52 6 25 66 97 1265 8 2 3 700 178 61 3218 

 

* = Including  TOW 

**= Including LAH and TOW 
 

3C-2



 

 

 

Report to the District Board for the Regular Meeting of November 8, 2023 
 

 
 

   WEST BAY SANITARY DISTRICT 
AGENDA ITEM 3D 

 
 
To: Board of Directors 
 
From: Bob Hulsmann, Operations Superintendent  
 
Subject: Town of Los Altos Hills - Operations and Maintenance Report for Work 

Performed by WBSD – October 2023 
 

 

Town of Los Altos Hills O & M Report 22/23 

  

  

Basin 
PM 

Pipe  
Clean-

ing 

High 
Freq. 
PM 

Pipe 
Clean-

ing 

Un-
Sche. 
Pipe 

Clean-
ing 

WBSD 
CCTV 
Insp. 

Pipe 
Patch 

Repairs 

Pump 
Sta. 
PM 

Pump 
Sta. 

Unsch. 
Repairs 

SSO SSO  Service 
Calls 

Month               Cat. 
1 

Cat. 
2&3s 

Call 

  Miles Miles Miles Miles Qty. Qty. Qty. Outs 

                      

January-23 0.8 1.3 0.1 0.9 0 5 0 1 0 0 

                      

February 1.8 0.3 0.3 0.8 0 4 0 0 0 0 

                      

March 0.8 0.9 0.0 1.1 0 4 3 1 0 0 

                      

April 0.0 1.6 0.1 1.0 0 4 0 0 0 0 

                      

May 0.0 1.8 0.2 1.4 0 5 0 1 0 0 

                      

June 0.7 0.5 0.0 1.0 0 4 0 0 0 0 

                      

July 0.0 1.3 0.0 0.1 12 4 0 0 0 0 

                      

*August 23 1.0 0.8 0.0 0.5 0 4 0 0 0 0 

                      

Sept.  0.7 1.0 0.5 0.8 0 4 0 0 0 0 

                      

Oct.  0.0 1.3 0.2 0.9 0 4 0 0 0 0 

                      

Nov. 0.4 1.3 0.0 1.1 0 4 0 0 1 1 

                      

Dec 0.3 1.4 0.0 0.5 0 4 0 0 0 0 

** Yr to date 6.5 13.5 1.4 10.1 12.0 50 3 3 1 1 

 
  

3D-1



 

 

 

Report to the District Board for the Regular Meeting of November 8, 2023 
 

  

FY23/24Goals 10.6 14.4 n/a 8.1 n/a 52 n/a n/a n/a n/a  

* = August- Start of Contract           

           

 Goal Total Remain        
Pipe Cleaning 25 21.4 3.6        
CCTV Inspection 8.1 10.1 -2.0        

 

3D-2



 

 

 

Report to the District Board for the Regular Meeting of November 8, 2023 
 

                                                                                         WEST BAY SANITARY DISTRICT 
AGENDA ITEM 3E 

 
 
To: Board of Directors 
 
From: Bob Hulsmann, Operations Superintendent  
 
Subject: Town of Woodside Operations and Maintenance Report for Work 

Performed by WBSD – October 2023 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

3E-1



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
TTTHHHIIISSS   PPPAAAGGGEEE   LLLEEEFFFTTT   IIINNNTTTEEENNNTTTIIIOOONNNAAALLLLLLYYY   BBBLLLAAANNNKKK   

3E-2



Report to the District Board for the Regular Meeting of November 8, 2023 

WEST BAY SANITARY DISTRICT 
AGENDA ITEM 3F 

 
 

 
To: Board of Directors 
 
From: Debra Fisher, Finance Manager 
  
Subject: Consider Approving District Treasury Report  
 First Quarter FY 2023-24 

 
Background 

The District board established the first reserve In October 2010. Subsequently, the Board has 
established several additional reserves to provide financial stability for the District.   
 
Excess funds over the current monthly expenditures are held in the Local Agency Investment 
Fund (LAIF), which are equivalent to cash and may earn higher yields without a long-term 
commitment.  Operating Reserves, customer deposits, current capital projects, and Solid Waste 
Funds are held in LAIF. 
 
Restricted funds for Sharon Heights Golf & Country Club (SHGCC), as required for the Clean 
Water State Revolving Fund (SRF) loan are held in a restricted account. 
 
There are five separate investment reserves maintained to support the goals of the District, 
along with reserves held in LAIF, the Vehicle & Equipment Reserve held in a money market 
account, a Pension Trust, and the restricted Recycled Water SRF Reserve.  Annual 
contributions are made in accordance with the Board approved budget to reach or maintain the 
target balances for each reserve.   
 
On February 1, 2023, BMO Financial Group acquired Bank of the West from BNP Paribas.  
Bank of Montreal (BMO) was the 13th largest commercial bank, as of June 30, 2023, according 
to the Federal Reserve, with $263 billion in domestic assets and 1,024 domestic branches, 
including the Menlo Park branch.  BMO converted all District accounts from Bank of the West to 
BMO bank systems; the bank accounts with Bank of the West were transferred on September 5, 
2023 and the investment accounts transferred September 1, 2023, therefore there are separate 
investment statements from Bank of the West from July 1, 2023 through August 31, 2023 and 
BMO for September 2023.  All accounts were transferred into corresponding accounts with 
BMO. 

Reserve Account Originated Target Balance     Target 

Operating Reserve 11/26/2014 $14 million *  Achieved 

Rate Stabilization Reserve  10/30/2015 $10 million  Achieved 

Treatment Plant Reserve 9/24/2021 $12 million  Achieved 

Capital Project Reserve 11/26/2014 $8 million  Achieved 

Emergency Capital Reserve 10/19/2010 $6 million  Achieved 

Recycled Water Cash Flow  11/18/2016 $8 million Unfulfilled 

Recycled Water SRF Reserve  3/01/2018 $1.46 million  Achieved 

Vehicle & Equipment Reserve 8/18/2011 $1 million  Achieved 

   

  *   Based on approved FY 2023-24 Budget, 6 months Operations, held in LAIF.  

 

3F-1



Report to the District Board for the Regular Meeting of November 8, 2023 

 

Fiscal Impact  
The District has approximately $79.6 million in all reserve and bank accounts as of September 
30, 2023, including restricted funds.  Accrued Income was $536 thousand. 
 
The District had total funds of approximately $17.3 million above the total $60 million target 
reserve balances, combining all District unrestricted accounts, as of September 30, 2023.  All 
reserve accounts have achieved the individual targets approved by the board, except the 
Recycled Water Cash Flow Reserve, which is $250 thousand below the target. 
 

District Funds 9/30/2023

Cash Equivalent Accounts 33,643,625      

Investment Accounts - Unrestricted 43,728,778      

Public Agency Retirement Services (PARS Trust) 709,485            

SHGCC SRF Loan Deposit 1,518,063        

Total District Funds 79,599,951       

There is $3.3 million in transfers in the approved FY 2023-24 Budget.  The District allocated an 

additional $2,913,031 of LAIF funds for the Operating Reserve, to meet six months of 

expenditures and $401,577 for Equipment Reserve.  A contribution of $762,622 to Silicon Valley 

Clean Water (SVCW) is included in the operating budget, which will be deposited in SVCW’s 

California Asset Management Program (CAMP) Debt Coverage Reserve; with the $670,000 

contributed in FY 2022-23.  The District holds a 26.84% prorate share ($673,472) of the 

SVCW’s CAMP Debt Coverage Reserve.    

The investment portfolios have been set up with the rate of return goal of 2%.  Current District 
yields in the BMO Investment Reserves average 1.72% for September 2023.  LAIF’s yield was 
3.534%. 

 
 
Recommendation 
The Finance Manager recommends the District Board approve the report on the District’s 
Treasury Report, including investment portfolio statements detailing assets held, transactions, 
and changes in market value to the Reserve accounts described therein, for the first quarter 
fiscal year 2023-24. 
 
Attachments:  Schedule of Cash and Investments, September 30, 2023 
   Investment Statements BofW 7-2023 to 8-2023  

   Investment Statements BMO 9-2023 
    

3F-2



3F-3



3F-4



3F-5



3F-6



3F-7



3F-8



3F-9



3F-10



3F-11



3F-12



3F-13



3F-14



3F-15



3F-16



3F-17



3F-18



3F-19



3F-20



3F-21



3F-22



3F-23



3F-24



3F-25



3F-26



3F-27



3F-28



3F-29



3F-30



3F-31



3F-32



3F-33



3F-34



3F-35



3F-36



3F-37



3F-38



3F-39



3F-40



3F-41



3F-42



3F-43



3F-44



3F-45



3F-46



3F-47



3F-48



3F-49



3F-50



3F-51



3F-52



3F-53



3F-54



3F-55



3F-56



3F-57



3F-58



3F-59



3F-60



3F-61



3F-62



3F-63



3F-64



3F-65



3F-66



3F-67



3F-68



3F-69



3F-70



3F-71



3F-72



3F-73



3F-74



3F-75



3F-76



3F-77



3F-78



3F-79



3F-80



3F-81



3F-82



3F-83



3F-84



3F-85



3F-86



3F-87



3F-88



3F-89



3F-90



3F-91



3F-92



3F-93



3F-94



3F-95



3F-96



3F-97



3F-98



3F-99



3F-100



3F-101



3F-102



3F-103



3F-104



3F-105



3F-106



3F-107



3F-108



3F-109



3F-110



3F-111



3F-112



3F-113



3F-114



3F-115



3F-116



3F-117



3F-118



3F-119



3F-120



3F-121



3F-122



3F-123



3F-124



3F-125



3F-126



3F-127



3F-128



3F-129



3F-130



3F-131



3F-132



 

 

Report to the District Board for the Regular Meeting of November 8, 2023 
 

WEST BAY SANITARY DISTRICT 
AGENDA ITEM 3G 

 
 

 
To: Board of Directors 
 
From: Fariborz Heydari, P.E., Project Manager 
  
Subject: Consider Approving Resolution of Intention to Annex Certain 

Territory (118 Mapache Drive Portola Valley) to the West Bay 
Sanitary District On-Site Wastewater Disposal Zone and to 
Establish the Date and Time of Public Hearing  

 

 
Background 

This property will utilize a septic tank effluent pump (STEP) system; consequently this 
property must be annexed into the District’s On-Site Wastewater Disposal Zone. The 
proponent shall be required to extend the existing 2” force main at the intersection of 
Mapache Drive and Westridge Drive to 118 Mapache Drive and to install a STEP 
system that will connect to the new 2” force main extension. 
 
Notice of the Public Hearing is required in accordance with the Government Code and 
during the notice period, staff shall seek written approval for the proposed annexation 
from all affected agencies. 

 

Analysis  

During the notice period staff shall work with the proponent to obtain design, easement 
and other approvals, which shall be presented to the Board when the Class 5 Permit is 
issued. 
 

Fiscal Impact  

None.  

 

Recommendation 

The Project Manager recommends that the District Board adopt the attached Resolution 
of Intention to Annex Certain Territory to the West Bay Sanitary District On-Site 
Wastewater Disposal Zone and request January 10, 2024 as the date of the public 
hearing. 
 
Attachments:  Resolution  

Exhibit A – Plat & Legal  
Exhibit B – Site Map 
Exhibit C - LAFCo Certificate of Completion 

3G-1



RESOLUTION NO.    _     (2023) 
 

RESOLUTION OF INTENTION TO ANNEX CERTAIN TERRITORY TO THE WEST BAY 
SANITARY DISTRICT ON-SITE WASTEWATER DISPOSAL ZONE 

 
Lands of Lands of Michael C. Trigg and Leslie L. Trigg, Trustees of The Trigg 2002 Revocable 

Trust dated December 30, 2022 
 
 

 The District Board of West Bay Sanitary District finds and determines as follows: 
 
 A. This Resolution of Intention is adopted pursuant to the District’s “Zone Master 
Annexation Resolution” (“ZOMAR”), which was adopted by the District Board August 12, 1996. 
The provisions of ZOMAR are incorporated by reference into this Resolution of Intention. 
 
 B. The District has received an application to annex a parcel of real property (the 
“Parcel”) to the District’s On-Site Wastewater Disposal Zone (the “Zone”). The Parcel is 
described in Exhibit “A” attached to this Resolution of Intention and the description contained in 
the Exhibits are incorporated by reference. The name and address of the applicants and the 
number, type, volume and location of on-site wastewater disposal systems which are proposed 
to operate on the parcels to be annexed are described in Exhibit “B” attached to this 
Resolution of Intention and the information contained in the Exhibit are incorporated by 
reference. 
 
 C. The applicants have demonstrated to the satisfaction of the District Board that 
the Parcel constitutes “real property” for the purposes of Section 2(b) of ZOMAR in that: 
 

  X  All of the conditions described in Subsections i., ii., iii., iv. and v. of ZOMAR 

Section 2(b) are satisfied; or 
 

  Other conditions exist which demonstrate that the Parcel will benefit directly or 
indirectly from the activities of the Zone. If applicable, those conditions are also 
set forth in Exhibit “B” and are incorporated by reference. 

 
D. All of the conditions and requirements of ZOMAR Sections 2(a), 2(c), 2(d) and 

2(e) have been fully satisfied. 
 
In consideration of the foregoing findings and determinations, 
 
 IT IS RESOLVED by the District Board as follows: 
 

1.  It is the intention of the District Board to annex the Parcel to the Zone 
pursuant to the provisions of ZOMAR and applicable provisions of law. 

 
2.  In conjunction with a meeting of the District Board to be duly and regularly 

called and conducted, the Board will conduct a Public Hearing for the 
purpose of considering all matters pertaining to this Resolution of Intention. 

3G-2



The time, date and place of the Public Hearing are: 
 

Date: January 10, 2024 
Time: 7:00 PM 
Place: West Bay Sanitary District Offices 
 500 Laurel Street 
 Menlo Park, CA 94025 
  

& via Zoom 
 

At the Public Hearing, all interested persons will be heard. 
 

3.  This Resolution of Intention shall be published and copies shall be delivered 
to the persons and entities as specified in ZOMAR Section 2(e)(i.). 

 
4.  A true copy of this Resolution of Intention shall promptly be filed for record in 

the office of the County Recorder of the County of San Mateo. 
 

5.  The General Manager shall cause the matters set forth in Sections 3 and 4 of 
this Resolution of Intention to be completed as directed. 

 
****** 

Passed and adopted by the District Board of the West Bay Sanitary District at a regular 
meeting thereof held on the 8th day of November, 2023 by the following vote: 
 
 
AYES:   
 
NOES:  
 
ABSTAIN:  
 
ABSENT:  
 
 
      ________________________________ 
       President of the District Board of the  
       West Bay Sanitary District of San Mateo  
       County, State of California      
                                                      

Attest:         

__________________________________ 
Secretary of the District Board of the  
West Bay Sanitary District of San Mateo  
County, State of California 

3G-3



3G-4



3G-5



3G-6



© OpenStreetMap (and) contributors, CC-BY-SA

WEST BAY SANITARY DISTRICT
EXHIBIT "B"

SITE LOCATION
118 MAPACHE DRIVE
PORTOLA VALLEY, CA

STEP SYSTEM
Legend

Main_Extension
OWDZ Force Main

APN: 077-021-200
118 Mapache Dr
Portola Valley, CA
Main Line Extension from 118 Mapache Dr

.

3G-7



3G-8



3G-9



3G-10



3G-11



3G-12



3G-13



3G-14



3G-15



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
TTTHHHIIISSS   PPPAAAGGGEEE   LLLEEEFFFTTT   IIINNNTTTEEENNNTTTIIIOOONNNAAALLLLLLYYY   BBBLLLAAANNNKKK   

3G-16



 

 

Report to the District Board for the Regular Meeting of November 8, 2023 
 

WEST BAY SANITARY DISTRICT 
AGENDA ITEM 3H 

 
 

 
To: Board of Directors 
 
From: Fariborz Heydari, P.E., Project Manager 
  
Subject: Consider Approving Resolution of Intention to Annex Certain 

Territory (350 Grove Drive Portola Valley) to the West Bay 
Sanitary District On-Site Wastewater Disposal Zone and to 
Establish the Date and Time of Public Hearing  

 

 
Background 

This property will utilize a septic tank effluent pump (STEP) system; consequently this 
property must be annexed into the District’s On-Site Wastewater Disposal Zone. The 
proponent shall be required to extend the existing 2” force main on Grove Drive to 350 
Grove Drive and to install a STEP system that will connect to the new 2” force main 
extension. 
 
Notice of the Public Hearing is required in accordance with the Government Code and 
during the notice period, staff shall seek written approval for the proposed annexation 
from all affected agencies. 

 

Analysis  

During the notice period staff shall work with the proponent to obtain design, easement 
and other approvals, which shall be presented to the Board when the Class 5 Permit is 
issued. 
 

Fiscal Impact  

None.  

 

Recommendation 

The Project Manager recommends that the District Board adopt the attached Resolution 
of Intention to Annex Certain Territory to the West Bay Sanitary District On-Site 
Wastewater Disposal Zone and request January 10, 2024 as the date of the public 
hearing. 
 
Attachments:  Resolution  

Exhibit A – Plat & Legal  
Exhibit B – Site Map 
Exhibit C - LAFCo Certificate of Completion 

3H-1



RESOLUTION NO.    _     (2023) 
 

RESOLUTION OF INTENTION TO ANNEX CERTAIN TERRITORY TO THE WEST BAY 
SANITARY DISTRICT ON-SITE WASTEWATER DISPOSAL ZONE 

 
Lands of Jonathan L. Eng and Joanna Y. Kim, as Co-Trustees of the Kim-Eng 2020 

Revocable Trust dated October 20, 2020 
 

 The District Board of West Bay Sanitary District finds and determines as follows: 
 
 A. This Resolution of Intention is adopted pursuant to the District’s “Zone Master 
Annexation Resolution” (“ZOMAR”), which was adopted by the District Board August 12, 1996. 
The provisions of ZOMAR are incorporated by reference into this Resolution of Intention. 
 
 B. The District has received an application to annex a parcel of real property (the 
“Parcel”) to the District’s On-Site Wastewater Disposal Zone (the “Zone”). The Parcel is 
described in Exhibit “A” attached to this Resolution of Intention and the description contained in 
the Exhibits are incorporated by reference. The name and address of the applicants and the 
number, type, volume and location of on-site wastewater disposal systems which are proposed 
to operate on the parcels to be annexed are described in Exhibit “B” attached to this 
Resolution of Intention and the information contained in the Exhibit are incorporated by 
reference. 
 
 C. The applicants have demonstrated to the satisfaction of the District Board that 
the Parcel constitutes “real property” for the purposes of Section 2(b) of ZOMAR in that: 
 

  X  All of the conditions described in Subsections i., ii., iii., iv. and v. of ZOMAR 

Section 2(b) are satisfied; or 
 

  Other conditions exist which demonstrate that the Parcel will benefit directly or 
indirectly from the activities of the Zone. If applicable, those conditions are also 
set forth in Exhibit “B” and are incorporated by reference. 

 
D. All of the conditions and requirements of ZOMAR Sections 2(a), 2(c), 2(d) and 

2(e) have been fully satisfied. 
 
In consideration of the foregoing findings and determinations, 
 
 IT IS RESOLVED by the District Board as follows: 
 

1.  It is the intention of the District Board to annex the Parcel to the Zone 
pursuant to the provisions of ZOMAR and applicable provisions of law. 

 
2.  In conjunction with a meeting of the District Board to be duly and regularly 

called and conducted, the Board will conduct a Public Hearing for the 
purpose of considering all matters pertaining to this Resolution of Intention. 

3H-2



The time, date and place of the Public Hearing are: 
 

Date: January 10, 2024 
Time: 7:00 PM 
Place: West Bay Sanitary District Offices 
 500 Laurel Street 
 Menlo Park, CA 94025 
  

& via Zoom 
 

At the Public Hearing, all interested persons will be heard. 
 

3.  This Resolution of Intention shall be published and copies shall be delivered 
to the persons and entities as specified in ZOMAR Section 2(e)(i.). 

 
4.  A true copy of this Resolution of Intention shall promptly be filed for record in 

the office of the County Recorder of the County of San Mateo. 
 

5.  The General Manager shall cause the matters set forth in Sections 3 and 4 of 
this Resolution of Intention to be completed as directed. 

 
****** 

Passed and adopted by the District Board of the West Bay Sanitary District at a regular 
meeting thereof held on the 8th day of November, 2023 by the following vote: 
 
 
AYES:   
 
NOES:  
 
ABSTAIN:  
 
ABSENT:  
 
 
      ________________________________ 
       President of the District Board of the  
       West Bay Sanitary District of San Mateo  
       County, State of California      
                                                      

Attest:         

__________________________________ 
Secretary of the District Board of the  
West Bay Sanitary District of San Mateo  
County, State of California 

3H-3



3H-4



3H-5



3H-6



!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2!!2
!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2
!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2
!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2
!!2

!!2
!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

M11015

N11072

N11073
N11074

N11075

N11076

N11002 M11014

M11013 M11016

M11012

© OpenStreetMap (and) contributors, CC-BY-SA

WEST BAY SANITARY DISTRICT
EXHIBIT "B"

SITE LOCATION
350 GROVE DRIVE

PORTOLA VALLEY, CA
GRINDER PUMP SYSTEM

Legend
Main_Extension
OWDZ Force Main

APN: 079-021-020
350 Grove Dr
Portola Valley, CA
Main Line Extension to connect
to existing force main on Grove Dr

.

3H-7



3H-8



3H-9



3H-10



3H-11



3H-12



3H-13



3H-14



3H-15



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
TTTHHHIIISSS   PPPAAAGGGEEE   LLLEEEFFFTTT   IIINNNTTTEEENNNTTTIIIOOONNNAAALLLLLLYYY   BBBLLLAAANNNKKK   

3H-16



 

 

Report to the District Board for the Regular Meeting of November 8, 2023 
 

WEST BAY SANITARY DISTRICT 
AGENDA ITEM 4 

 
 

 
 
To: Board of Directors 
 

From: Sergio Ramirez, General Manager  
 

Subject: General Manager’s Report  

 

1) Administrative:     
a. Staff submitted the response to LAFCo, per Board direction, on the Alternative Proposal 

from East Palo Alto Sanitary District.    
b. Staff performed research on several on-line bidding platforms and has determined that 

Bidnet Direct will serve the District’s need the best. General Counsel has reviewed the 
agreement which should be signed soon.  

2) Finance:  
a. The State Revolving Fund (SRF) staff continues to work on the Bayfront Recycled Water 

Facility’s SRF loan.  
b. The Finance Manager is working with BMO to simplify the monthly investment reports to 

look similar to the Bank of the West reports.  

3) CIP Projects:   

a. Construction Capital Improvement Program (CIP): 

i. The Bayfront Park Improvements project required three large trees removals. Staff 
previously recommended the District pay the in lieu permit fee rather than 
purchasing, planning, and replacing trees. The City’s preference was that the 
District incorporate planting trees at the proposed Reclaimed Water Facility as 
part of its landscape plan; rather than paying the $85 thousand in lieu fee. The 
General Manager agreed and the $85 thousand will not be paid as part of the 
permit.    

b. Levee Improvement Project:    

i. The Levee Improvement Project has begun. Anderson Pacific has worked to 
protect the Salt Marsh Harvest Mouse by clearing vegetation. The next steps will 
require installing sheet piles.  

4) Information Technology (IT): 
a. Staff continues to work with Central Square on the new online permit system.   

 
5) Operations and Maintenance:   

a. Collection System:  
i. The crew is installing a passive overflow pipeline at the corner of Laurel St and 

Newbridge St. in East Palo Alto. The new pipeline will relieve flow from a six inch 
during storm events and allow it to flow to a pipeline that carries very little flow. 
This is in preparation to the anticipated rainy season. 

ii. The crew will install one additional water tight manhole lid on Ivy Drive in Menlo 
Park to avoid storm water into the sewer system and vice versa. This too is in 
anticipation of the predicted rain.  
    

4-1



 

 

Report to the District Board for the Regular Meeting of November 8, 2023 
 

b. Pump Facilities:  
i. The pump station crew continue to replace the ISAC boards  with lights and 

buzzards to the Private STEP/Grider Systems.   
c. Training: 

i. Staff will receive training on Blood Born Pathogens this month.  
    

6) Water Quality: 
a. Sharon Heights Golf and Country Club (SHGCC): 

i. Casey Construction has completed a substantial portion of the Avy Altschul Pump 
Station project. The contractor is waiting for the electrical panel to complete the 
work. The new fencing around the pump station will be installed soon.  

b. Bayfront Recycled Water Facility (BRWF):  
i. The Request for Qualifications has been advertised and only one proposal was 

submitted. The Board will discuss more during the Bayfront Recycled Water 
Facility agenda item.  

ii. A meeting was held on October 11th with META to discuss the progress with the 
reclaimed water facility.  

 
c. Woodside Recycled Water Facility (WRWF): 

i. The Woodside Recycled Water Facility feasibility study draft was submitted to the 
state and will be brought to the Board. 

7) Fleet and Facilities:  
a. Vehicle Maintenance:  

i. The new Dump Truck has been ordered.   
8) Personnel: 

i. Recruitment for a Maintenance Worker was successful. The position was offered 
to the top candidate.  

 
9) Upcoming Events:  

a. Next Regular Board Meetings: Wednesdays November 8th and November 22nd   

b. Thanksgiving Lunch: November 15th   

c. Holiday Lunch: December 12th   

10) Misc. Items:  
a. West Bay: The General Manager will update the Board on miscellaneous items related to 

District operations.   

b. Town of Los Altos Hills: Staff continues to provide maintenance and support to the 
Town.    

c. Town of Woodside: Staff continues to provide maintenance and support to the Town.    
 

4-2



 

 

Report to the District Board for the Regular Meeting of November 8, 2023 
 

WEST BAY SANITARY DISTRICT 
AGENDA ITEM 5 

 
 

 
To: Board of Directors 
 
From: Fariborz Heydari, P.E. Project Manager  
 
Subject: Consider Authorizing General Manager to Enter Into an 

Agreement for Design for the Proposed Reclaimed Water 
Infrastructure Within the O’Brien Drive and Menlo Park Labs 
(previously Menlo Business Park (MBP)) in Menlo Park 

 

 
Background 

The Bayfront Recycled Water Facilities Plan was completed in 2019 and recently 
updated. Since finalizing this plan, the District has been coordinating with the City of 
Menlo Park and potential recycled water customers to better understand their recycled 
water needs. There are recycled water needs for the potential customers within the 
O’Brien Drive and Menlo Park Labs (previously Menlo Business Park (MBP)). 

Although the Bayfront FERRF Recycled Facility Design-Build contractor has not been 
selected yet, the District has been proactive and taking advantage of opportunities 
presented to install purple pipes in the ground at various locations to date (i.e., Chilco 
Street, Ringwood Avenue, and Menlo Park Community Campus).  

In coordination with the City of Menlo Park for the O’Brien Drive Improvements to be 
constructed by Tarlton Properties, Inc. (Tarlton), the staff requested Tarlton to enter into 
a reimbursement agreement with the District to construct recycled water pipelines and 
associated work (i.e., valves, laterals, meters, etc.) at O’Brien Drive and Menlo Park 
Labs area. Tarlton has tentatively agreed to this, and the staff prepared a draft 
reimbursement agreement and submitted it to Tarlton on June 14, 2023 which is 
currently under review by their legal counsel. 

To meet the construction schedule deadline for the O’Brien Drive Improvements next 
year, the staff requested DES Architects + Engineers, Inc. (Design Consultant for 
Tarlton) to provide the District with a proposal for the design of recycled water pipelines 
and associated work. 

Analysis  

DES Architects + Engineers, Inc. will provide construction documents for the project. To 
move forward with the design phase, DES Architects + Engineers, Inc. has prepared a 

5-1



 

 

Report to the District Board for the Regular Meeting of November 8, 2023 
 

proposal that includes the following tasks, with added descriptions in the attached 
proposal. 

1) Preliminary design and layout 

2) 90% Construction Documents 

3) 100% Construction Documents & Permitting  

 

The full scope is found in the attached proposal.  

 

Fiscal Impact  

The O’Brien Reclaimed Water Pipelines Project was approved in the current budget 
with $2.5 million in the Capital Assets Recycled Water Project for FY 2023‐24. Staff is 

requesting funding for the design in the amount of $106,560 plus 10% contingency for 
approximately $118,000. 
 
The cost for the agreement will be reimbursed by developers and users of recycled 
water as they join in the project.  
 
Recommendation 

The Project Manager recommends the Board award the engineering design proposal to 
DES Architects + Engineers, Inc. to the amount of $106,560 and authorize the General 
Manager to approve up to 10 percent contingency for additional work on an as-needed 
basis.  

Attachments:   

DES Architects + Engineers, Inc. proposal dated September 25, 2023 

Agreement  
 

 

 
 

 

5-2



Consulting Engineering Services Proposal 
 
West Bay Sanitary District 
Menlo Park Labs Reclaimed Water  
P20230244 
09/25/2023 

San Francisco  /  One Sansome Street  /  415-510-2021 

Redwood City  /  399 Bradford Street  /  650-364-6453 des-ae.com 1 

Mr. Sergio Ramirez, General Manager 

Mr. Fariborz Heydari, PE 

West Bay Sanitary District 

500 Laurel Street 

Menlo Park, CA94025 

 

 

Dear Sergio and Fariborz, 

 

DES Architects + Engineers is pleased to submit this proposal to the West Bay Sanitary District (District) for 

consulting engineering services for the proposed reclaimed water(RW) infrastructure within the Menlo Park 

Labs (previously Menlo Business Park (MBP)). 

 

BACKGROUND 

WBSD is considering installing RW infrastructure in the MPL to allow for future service opportunities to the 

adjacent property owners. See the attached Area of Work Scope Exhibit. This proposal is for offering our Civil 

engineering consulting services for the completion of the design and permitting phases only. 

 

The background for our design drawings will be a topographic survey prepared by Kier + Wright surveyors in 

2017 of the following streets: O'Brien Drive, Adams Drive, and Adams Court. 

 

Portions of the Area of RW work will be in a separate city project involving the installation of a new 12" domestic 

waterline. This RW project's design and documents will take that work into consideration. 

 

SCOPE 

• Project will be divided into three phases:  

o Preliminary Design 

o Construction documents and  

o Permitting 

• Plans will show both the plan and profile of the proposed 8" RW pipe. 

• RW laterals of 2" diameter for irrigation and water supply purposes will be included on the plans.  These 

will be capped at the property lines for lots on each side of the street for future connections. 

• Meetings with the District will occur at the beginning and end of each phase, and as needed to discuss 

specific issues that arise. 

• Plans will include surface restoration details, notes and locations to be included with this construction 

work. Surface restoration is limited to curb & gutter/sidewalk replacement, pavement patching & 

restriping. 

• Scale will be 1"=20' Horizontal and 1"=4' vertical. 

• Sheet size: 30"x 42" with WBSD logo in the title block. 

• Benchmark datum (matching the OBD Water main plans) 

• Details, specs, and notes to be coordinated with WBSD for what the District has required/used on previous 

RW projects. District to provide us with that information if available or assist us in the development of 

them. All information to be shown on the plans with no stand-alone documents. 

• Work will take into consideration the current City of Menlo Park proposed watermain upgrade plans that 

DES is preparing. 

• Engineer's cost opinion of the proposed improvements. 

• A stormwater pollution prevention plan (SWPPP) will be prepared by DES as the acting QSD and WBSD as 

the LRP and filed with the Regional Water Quality Control Board. If a construction schedule is unknown or 

uncertain at the time of it's completion, it will not be submitted and uploaded to the Regional Water 

5-3



Consulting Engineering Services Proposal 
Menlo Park Labs Reclaimed Water  
P20230244 
09/25/2023 
 

 des-ae.com 2 

Quality Control Board's SMARTS(Storm Water Multiple Application and Report Tracking System (SMARTS) 

and provided to WBSD for their future use. 

• We have allowed for three (3) plan check review/comment cycles to obtain permit approval from WBSD 

and City of Menlo Park. Additional plan check review/comment cycles resulting from new comments, or a 

change of mind or scope by the review agencies, will be handled as an additional service with a fee 

proposal. 

 

EXCLUSIONS 

• Traffic Control plans. 

• Geotechnical, environmental studies or reports, additional surveying if needed. 

• Potholing/underground utility location work is not included in this proposal's scope. All utilities shown on 

the aforementioned topographic surveys that will be used for the background drawings will be presumed 

to be complete. 

• No hydraulic calculations or other studies for capacity, sizing, flow and pressure needed for the RW line 

design are included with this work. 

• No work to be done within and/or involving the Hetch Hetchy Easement or CalTrans right-of-ways. All 

work to be contained within the public street right-of-way. 

• No additional agencies have been included(nor anticipated being needed) to review or permit this work. 

 

DELIVERABLES 

Deliverables will include both PDFs and AutoCAD v. 2022 files for the plans and PDFs of the engineers cost 

opinion at the end of the construction documents phase, and after the final plan check comments are 

addressed. 

 

SCHEDULE AND SUBMITTAL MILESTONES 

 

The following is our estimated schedule and timeline for completing this work, upon execution of a contract 

and receiving authorization to proceed.  We estimate it will take approximately 14 weeks to complete a bid-

ready set of plans. 

 

1) Preliminary design and layout: (2 weeks) 

o Includes the plan view of the proposed RW improvements along with a basic notes/cover sheet.  

o 2 weeks for DES to complete and submit. 

o 2 weeks for WBSD and City of Menlo Park to review/comment 

 

2) 90% Construction Documents: (5 weeks) 

o Includes both the 90% plan and profile of the RW line, and updated notes/cover sheet along with 

details, erosion control and sedimentation plan, surface restoration plan 90% engineer's cost opinion. 

o 5 weeks for DES to complete and submit. 

o 2 weeks for WBSD and City of Menlo Park to review/comment. 

 

3) 100% Construction Documents & Permitting (3-4 weeks) 

o Wrap up any remaining plan check comments from the 90% set. 

o Adjust final engineer's cost opinion if needed. 

o Prepare SWPPP. 

o 3-4 weeks for DES to complete. 

 

5-4



Consulting Engineering Services Proposal 
Menlo Park Labs Reclaimed Water  
P20230244 
09/25/2023 
 

 des-ae.com 3 

CONTRACT AND FEE 

 

Fees for labor will be a fixed fee and invoiced monthly. 

 

Reimbursable expenses will be per the attached Schedule of Charges and estimated to be approximately 

$5,100. To be adjusted as needed if exceeded. 

 

Preliminary design and layout $ 22,250 

 

90% Construction Documents $ 55,420 

 

100% Construction Documents $ 23,790 

 

Reimbursable Expenses $5,100 

Grand Total: $ 106,560 

 

TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

 

Basic Services will be provided in accordance with the (attached) Professional Services Agreement dated 

09/25/2023.  

 

Should a change in scope or schedule be requested by WBSD, an Adjusted Services Agreement would be 

prepared and submitted to the WBSD project manager for approval prior to commencing work on the 

adjusted services. 

 

DES will require authorization to proceed in the form of a Professional Services Agreement signed by an 

authorized representative of WBSD and returned to DES prior to commencement of work. An original or PDF 

file is acceptable. 

 

This proposal is valid for 30 days. 

 

If you have any questions concerning this proposal or require any additional information, please contact John 

Fullerton or me at 650-364-6453. We look forward to working with the District on this exciting and community-

benefitting project. 

 

Sincerely, 

 

DES Architects + Engineers 

 

 

 

Chris Boyle, PE 

Director of Civil Engineering 

 

cc John Fullerton, Principal, DES 

 Max DeAndreis, PE, DES 

 

Enc: Area of Work Scope Exhibit  

 Professional Services Agreement with Schedule of Charges 

5-5



(S 63 °06'02"W)

01
UTILITY PLAN − O’BRIEN DRIVE

PROPOSED 8" RECLAIMED WATER LINE

PROPOSED 12" WATER LINE

PROPOSED LIGHT POST

LEGEND

EXISTING WATERMAIN

W
IL

LO
W

 R
O

AD

U
N

IV
E

R
S

IT
Y

 A
V

E
N

U
E

HETCH HETCHY
(SFPUC R.O.W.)

A
D

A
M

S
 D

R
IV

E

ADAMS COURT

Preliminary
06/21/2023  10:56:52 AM

PROPOSED RW LINE
WILL NEED TO BE
RELOCATED OUT OF
THE HH ROW.

PROPOSED RW LINE
WILL NEED TO BE
RELOCATED OUT OF
THE HH ROW.

End of RW Line.
Add valve and cap.

End of 8" RW
Line. Add valve
and cap.

Connection to Future RW
line at Meta Willow Village.
Add valve and cap.

Add cluster valves for
RW line as necessary.

End of RW Line.
Add valve and cap.

8" RW line (typ.).

8" RW line (typ.).

End 8" RW Line.
Add valve and cap.

Comments provided by Fariborz Heydari
West Bay Sanitary District 07-11-2023

5-6

cboyle
Line

cboyle
Line

cboyle
Line

cboyle
Line

cboyle
Line

cboyle
Line

cboyle
Line

cboyle
Line

cboyle
Line

cboyle
Line



ROADWAY EASEMENT
 (DOC. NO. 83039672)

(PARCEL 1)

X

X

01
UTILITY PLAN − O’BRIEN DRIVE

M
A

T
C

H
 L

IN
E

 -
 S

E
E

 S
H

E
E

T
 C

4
.0

7

03
KEYMAP

O'BRIEN DRIVE

CASEY CT.

KAVANAUGHDR.

M
A

T
C

H
 L

IN
E

 -
 S

E
E

 S
H

E
E

T
 C

4
.0

5

02
PROFILE VIEW − O’BRIEN DRIVE

KEYNOTES:

59

59

ABBREVIATIONS:

E
N

D
 O

F
 P

R
O

F
IL

E

SHEET NOTES:

LEGEND:

Preliminary
06/21/2023  10:56:56 AM

5-7



ROADWAY EASEMENT
 (DOC. NO. 83039672)

(PARCEL 2)

I.E.E., PARKING &
LANDSCAPING EASEMENT

(DOC. NO. 83039672)
(PARCEL 4)

01
UTILITY PLAN − O’BRIEN DRIVE

M
A

T
C

H
 L

IN
E

 -
 S

E
E

 S
H

E
E

T
 C

4
.0

8

03
KEYMAP

O'BRIEN DRIVE

A
D

A
M

S
 D

R
IV

E

U
N

IV
E

R
S

IT
Y

A
V

E
N

U
E

O'BRIEN DRIVE

ADAMS CT.

M
A

T
C

H
 L

IN
E

 -
 S

E
E

 S
H

E
E

T
 C

4
.0

6

KEYNOTES:

61

61

62

62

ABBREVIATIONS:

SHEET NOTES:

LEGEND:

Preliminary
06/21/2023  10:56:57 AM

5-8



10.00' STORM DRAIN SIPHON ESMT

(DOC. NO. 83039672)

(PARCEL 5)

7.00' P.U.E.

(111 M 50-52)

01
UTILITY PLAN − O’BRIEN DRIVE

M
A

T
C

H
 L

IN
E

 -
 S

E
E

 S
H

E
E

T
 C

4
.0

9

03
KEYMAP

A
D

A
M

S

D
R

IV
E

A
D

A
M

S
 D

R
IV

E

U
N

IV
E

R
S

IT
Y

A
V

E
N

U
E

O'BRIEN DRIVE

ADAMS CT.

M
A

T
C

H
 L

IN
E

 -
 S

E
E

 S
H

E
E

T
 C

4
.0

7 O'BRIEN DRIVE

KEYNOTES:

62

63

64

62

626463

ABBREVIATIONS:

SHEET NOTES:

LEGEND:
Preliminary

06/21/2023  10:56:57 AM

5-9



01
UTILITY PLAN − O’BRIEN DRIVE

03
KEYMAP

O'BRIEN DRIVE

A
D

A
M

S
 D

R
IV

E

U
N

IV
E

R
S

IT
Y

 A
V

E
N

U
E

O'BRIEN DRIVE

ADAMS CT.

M
A

T
C

H
 L

IN
E

 -
 S

E
E

 S
H

E
E

T
 C

4
.0

8

KEYNOTES:

82

65

82

65

ABBREVIATIONS:

SHEET NOTES:

LEGEND:

M
A

T
C

H
 L

IN
E

 -
 S

E
E

 S
H

E
E

T
 C

4
.1

0

Preliminary
06/21/2023  10:56:57 AM

5-10



I.E
.E

., P
ARKIN

G &

 LANDSCAPIN
G E

ASEMENT

(D
OC. N

O. 8
3039672)

(P
ARCEL 4)

ROADWAY, SAN
SEWER SIPH
STORM DRA

SANITARY SE
FORCE MAIN EA

 (DOC. NO. 830
(PARCEL 

01
UTILITY PLAN − O’BRIEN DRIVE

03
KEYMAP

A
D

A
M

S
 D

R
IV

E

U
N

IV
E

R
S

IT
Y

A
V

E
N

U
E

O'BRIEN DRIVE

ADAMS CT.

M
A

T
C

H
 L

IN
E

 -
 S

E
E

 S
H

E
E

T
 C

4
.0

9

SHEET NOTES: LEGEND:

ABBREVIATIONS:

Preliminary
06/21/2023  10:56:57 AM

5-11



07/12/2023                                                                                             WBSD Standard Consultant Agreement  

AGREEMENT FOR PROFESSIONAL 

SERVICES BETWEEN WEST BAY 

SANITARY DISTRICT AND 

DES ARCHITECTS + ENGINEERS, INC. 
 

 

 

THIS  AGREEMENT,  hereinafter  referred  to  as  “Agreement”,  made  and  effective  on  this 

8th day of November, 2023, by and between West Bay Sanitary District, hereinafter referred to 

as “District”, and DES Archi tects  + Engineers ,  Inc . , hereinafter referred to as 

“Consultant.” (District and Consultant are referred to individually as a “Party” and collectively, 

as the “Parties”). 

 

WITNESSETH: 

 

WHEREAS, the District desires to procure certain professional services as more particularly 

described in “WEST BAY SANITARY DISTRICT  RECLAIMED WATER (RW) 

INFRASTRUCTURE WITHIN O’BRIEN DRIVE AND THE MENLO PARK LABS 

(PREVIOUSLY MENLO BUSINESS PARK (MBP))  SCOPE FOR CONSULTING 

ENGINEERING SERVICES DES ARCHITECTS + ENGINEERS, INC.” (“Scope 

of Work”) attached hereto as Exhibit “A” and incorporated herein by reference (hereinafter 

referred to as “Proposal”); and 

 

WHEREAS, Consultant has available, and offers to provide, personnel and facilities necessary 

to accomplish the work contemplated in the Proposal as may be requested by the District; 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, the District and Consultant agree as follows: 

 

I. DESCRIPTION OF PROJECT 

 

Consultant will provide engineering design services for the proposed reclaimed water (RW) 

infrastructure within O’Brien Drive and the Menlo Park Labs (Previously Menlo Business Park 

(MBP)).  

 

II. SCOPE OF SERVICES 

 

Consultant agrees to perform those services described in the Scope of Work , attached 

hereto as Exhibit A. 

 

Consultant shall not undertake any work beyond the scope of services as set forth in Exhibit A. No 

changes in the scope of services shall be made without the District's prior written approval. 

 

 

II. TIME FOR COMPLETION 

 

The term of this Agreement shall commence on the effective date of this Agreement and 

5-12



07/12/2023                                                                                             WBSD Standard Consultant Agreement  

terminate on either November 30, 2024 or the timely completion of the Scope of Work described 

in the Proposal, whichever is later. 

 

Consultant shall begin work as specified in a written authorization (e.g. Notice to Proceed) 

to perform services. The written authorization to perform work shall not be issued until after 

this Agreement has been approved and authorized by the District. 

 

Consultant acknowledges that it is necessary for Consultant to complete its work on or before 

the completion date of November 30, 2024 in order to allow the District to achieve its objectives 

for entering into this Agreement. The Parties therefore agree that time is of the essence in 

the performance of this Agreement. 

 

III. COMPENSATION 

 

For actual services performed by Consultant, the District agrees to pay, and Consultant agrees 

to accept, compensation in an amount not to exceed the total amount described in the Proposal 

as full compensation for all personnel, materials, supplies, and equipment used by Consultant 

in the scope of services to be provided. Any change requiring compensation in excess of 

the sum of $106,560.00 as specified in the Proposal, shall only be allowed if approved in advance 

in writing by the District’s authorized representative. Consultant shall invoice the District 

detailing the time and materials for services provided under this Agreement in accordance with 

the Proposal. 

 

Consultant shall submit invoices for services completed each month. The District shall pay 

such invoices within forty-five (45) days after their receipt. 

 

IV. RESPONSIBILITY OF CONSULTANT 

 

Consultant agrees that in undertaking the duties to be performed hereunder, it shall act as 

an independent consultant for and on behalf of the District. The District shall not direct the 

work and means for accomplishment of the services and work to be performed hereunder. The 

District, however, retains the right to require that all work performed by Consultant or under 

Consultant’s direction, shall be rendered in accordance with the generally accepted practices, 

and to the standards of, Consultant's profession. Consultant represents and warrants that 

Consultant: (i) is fully experienced and properly qualified to perform the work and services 

provided for herein, (ii) has the financial capability required for the performance of the work 

and services, and (iii) is properly equipped and organized to perform the work and services in 

a competent, timely, and proper manner, in accordance with the requirements of this 

Agreement.    

 

If, in performing the work, it is necessary to conduct field operations, security and safety of the 

job site will be the Consultant's responsibility excluding, the security and safety of any facility 

of District within the job site which is not under the Consultant's control. 

 

V. INDEMNIFICATION 

 

5-13



07/12/2023                                                                                             WBSD Standard Consultant Agreement  

Consultant agrees, to the fullest extent permitted by law, to indemnify, defend, and hold 

harmless the District, its directors, officers, employees,  and agents (collectively, 

“Indemnitees”) from and against any and all liability, claim, action, loss, injury, damage, 

judgment, or expense, including attorneys’ fees and costs (“Losses”) caused by or resulting 

from the negligence, recklessness, or willful misconduct of Consultant, Consultant’s officers, 

employees, agents, or subcontractors in any way related to this Agreement. Consultant’s duty 

to indemnify and hold harmless Indemnitees shall not apply to the extent such Losses are 

caused by the sole or active negligence or willful misconduct of Indemnitees, as determined 

by an adjudicatory body or court of competent jurisdiction. The obligation to defend shall 

arise regardless of any claim or assertion that Indemnitees caused or contributed to the Losses. 

 

In the event this Agreement involves the performance of design professional services by 

Consultant, Consultant’s officers, employees, agents, or subcontractors, Consultant’s costs to 

defend Indemnitees shall not exceed the Consultant’s proportionate percentage of fault per 

Civil Code §2782.8. This section shall survive the termination or expiration of this Agreement. 

 

VI. INSURANCE 

 

Prior to the beginning and throughout the duration of the Agreement, as may be extended 

by written amendment, Consultant will maintain and comply with the insurance requirements 

below with insurers licensed to do business in the State of California and with a Best’s rating 

of no less than A:VII. Consultant will insure the District against claims for injuries to persons 

or damages to property which may arise from or in connection with the performance of the 

services hereunder. The insurance coverages required shall not in any way limit the liability 

of the Consultant. 

 

Certificate Requirements: 

The District will be issued a Certificate of Insurance (a Memorandum of Understanding will 

not be accepted) with the following minimum requirements: 

 

• Certificate(s) will show current policy number(s) and effective dates, 

• Coverage and policy limits will meet or exceed the requirements below, 

• The Certificate Holder will be West Bay Sanitary District, 500 Laurel Street, Menlo Park, 

CA 94025, 

• Certificate will be signed by an authorized representative,  

• An endorsement, if required below, will be provided to show the District, its directors, 

officers, , and employees as additional insureds, and 

• Coverages must be maintained during the term of the Agreement with the District, unless 

a longer duration is required. 

 

Required Coverage: 

 
A. Commercial   General   Liability   (CGL)   insurance,   including   products   and 

completed operations, property damage, bodily injury, personal and advertising injury with limits 

5-14



07/12/2023                                                                                             WBSD Standard Consultant Agreement  

of not less than $1,000,000 each occurrence and $2,000,000 aggregate. 

 

B. Automobile Liability insurance of $1,000,000 per accident covering 

automobile bodily injury and property damage, including all owned (if any), hired and non-

owned autos. If Consultant acquires any owned vehicles, Consultant shall provide insurance as 

above. 

 

C. Worker’s Compensation insurance and Occupational Disease insurance, with 

statutory limits as required by law, and Employer’s Liability insurance, of $1,000,000 per 

accident for bodily injury or disease covering all workplaces involved in this Agreement. 

Consultant shall provide an endorsement with a waiver of subrogation in the District’s favor 

for all services performed by Consultant and its employees relating to payment of any loss, 

including attorney’s fees. 

 

D. The Commercial General Liability and Automobile Liability Insurance policies 

shall be endorsed to name the District, its directors, officers, employees, and agents as additional 

insureds with respect to liability arising out of services or operations performed by or 

on behalf of Consultant including materials, parts, or equipment furnished in connection 

with such services or operations. Consultant’s insurance coverage is primary insurance and 

any insurance maintained by the District shall not contribute with it. 

 

E. Errors and Omissions: Consultant shall also provide Professional Liability 

Insurance appropriate to Consultant’s profession with limits of liability in amounts not less 

than $1,000,000 per occurrence or claim and $2,000,000 aggregate.  Consultant shall maintain, 

and provide evidence of coverage for at least five (5) years after the date of completion of the 

services under this Agreement. If coverage is canceled or non-renewed and not replaced with 

another claims-made policy form with a retroactive date prior to the Agreement effective date 

or start of work date, Consultant must purchase “extended reporting” coverage for a minimum 

of five (5) years after completion of services under this Agreement. 

 

F. Consultant shall require and verify that all of Consultant’s subcontractors 

maintain insurance meeting all of the requirements stated herein, and Consultant shall ensure 

that the District, its directors, officers, employees, and agents are additional insureds on the 

CGL and Automobile liability insurance policies required from subcontractors. 

 

G. Consultant shall provide the District with Certificates of Insurance and 

endorsements, on forms acceptable to District, or other evidence of insurance acceptable 

to District, prior to commencement of any services under this Agreement.  Each insurance 

policy required above shall provide that there will be no cancellation of coverage by the carrier 

without prior written notice to District. 

 

H. If Consultant maintains broader insurance coverage and/or higher limits than 

the minimums shown above, the District requires and shall be entitled to the broader 

insurance coverage and/or higher limits maintained by Consultant. Any available insurance 

proceeds in excess of the specified minimum limits of insurance and coverage shall be 

available to the District. 

5-15



07/12/2023                                                                                             WBSD Standard Consultant Agreement  

 

I. Any excess/liability policies must provide similar coverage as the primary CGL 

policy with no new exclusions - Excess liability insurance must follow form the terms, 

conditions, definitions, and exclusions of the underlying CGL insurance. The excess/umbrella 

policy must also be written on a primary and noncontributory basis for an additional insured, 

and that it will apply before any other insurance that is available to such additional insured 

which covers that person or organization as a named insured, and we will not share with 

that other insurance. 

 

J. The Excess policy must provide that the aggregate limits if applicable shall apply 

in the same manner as the aggregate limits shown in the Schedule of the Underlying Insurance. 

 

VII. TERMINATION 

 

The District may terminate this Agreement for its convenience with written notice of not 

less than 10 calendar days prior to an effective termination date. The District or Consultant 

may terminate the Agreement for material breach of Agreement by providing written notice 

to the other party not less than 15 calendar days prior to an effective termination date. 

 

Upon notice of termination, the Consultant will immediately take action not to incur any 

additional obligations, costs or expenses, except as may be reasonably necessary to terminate 

its activities. The District’s only obligation to the Consultant will be just and equitable payment 

for materials and/or services authorized by, and received to the satisfaction of, the District up 

to and including the effective date of termination, less any amounts withheld. All finished or 

unfinished work, materials, supplies, goods, or documents procured or produced under the 

Agreement will become property of the District upon the termination date. In the event of 

Consultant’s failure to perform, District reserves the right to obtain services elsewhere, and 

the defaulting Consultant will be liable for the difference between the prices set forth in the 

terminated Agreement and the actual cost to the District. After the effective date of termination, 

Consultant will have no further claims against the District under the Agreement including, but 

not limited to, claims for anticipated profit related to unperformed services. Termination of the 

Agreement pursuant to this paragraph may not relieve the Consultant of any liability to District 

for damages sustained by the District because of any breach of the Agreement by Consultant, 

and District may withhold any payments to Consultant for the purpose of set-off until such 

time as the exact amount of damages due District from Consultant is determined. 

 

The rights and remedies provided in this section will not be exclusive and are in addition to 

any other rights and remedies provided by law or under the contract. 

 

VIII. SUBCONTRACTS 

 

Except as provided in the Proposal, and otherwise with prior written approval of the District, 

Consultant shall not enter into any subcontract with any other party for purposes of providing 

any work or services covered by this Agreement. If at any time, the District determines 

any subcontractor is incompetent or unqualified, Consultant will be notified and will be 

expected to immediately cancel the subcontract. Consultant shall require and verify that all 

5-16



07/12/2023                                                                                             WBSD Standard Consultant Agreement  

subcontractors maintain insurance meeting all the requirements stated herein, and Consultant 

shall ensure that the District, its directors, officers, and employees are additional insureds on 

insurance required from subcontractors. 

 

IX. OTHER TERMS 

 

1. Compliance with Laws. All activities of Consultant, its employees, subcontractors and/or 

agents will be carried out in compliance with all applicable federal, state and local 

laws and regulations. 

 

2. Conflicts of Interest. Consultant owes District a duty of undivided loyalty in performing 

the work and services under this Agreement. Consultant on behalf of itself, its 

employees, agents, representatives, and subcontractors, covenants that it presently has 

no direct or indirect interest, financial or otherwise, and shall not acquire any interest, 

direct or indirect, which would conflict in any manner or degree with the 

performance of services required to be performed under this Agreement. Consultant 

acknowledges that it is aware of and agrees to comply with the provisions of the Political 

Reform Act, Section 1090 of the Government Code. Consultant will immediately advise 

District if Consultant learns of a conflicting financial interest of Consultant’s during 

the term of this Agreement. Consultant owes District a duty of undivided loyalty in 

performing the work and services under this Agreement. 

 

3. Property of District. The work, or any portion, of Consultant in performing this 

Agreement shall become the property of the District. The Consultant shall be permitted 

to retain copies or such work for information and reference in connection with the 

District's use. All materials and work product, whether finished or unfinished, shall be 

delivered to the District upon completion of contract services or termination of this 

Agreement for any reason. Consultant agrees that all copyrights which arise from 

creation of project- related documents and materials pursuant to this Agreement shall 

be vested in the District, and Consultant waives and relinquishes all claims to copyright 

or other intellectual property rights in favor of the District. Any work product related to 

this Agreement shall be confidential, not to be used by the Consultant on other projects 

or disclosed to any third party, except by agreement in writing by the District. 

 

4. Consultant's Records. Consultant shall maintain accurate accounting records and other 

written documentation pertaining to the costs incurred for this project for examination 

and audit by the District, local, state, or federal government, as applicable. Such records 

and documentation shall be kept available at Consultant's office during the period 

of this Agreement, and after the term of this Agreement for a period of five years from 

the date of the final District payment for Consultant's services. If Consultant engages a 

subcontractor to perform work related to this Agreement with a cost of $10,000 or more 

over a 12-month period, such subcontract shall contain these same requirements. This 

provision shall survive the termination of this Agreement. 

 

5. California Public Records Act. District is a public agency subject to the disclosure 

requirements of the California Public Records Act (“CPRA”). If Consultant’s 

5-17



07/12/2023                                                                                             WBSD Standard Consultant Agreement  

proprietary information is contained in documents or information submitted to District, 

and Consultant claims that such information falls within one or more CPRA exemptions, 

Consultant must clearly mark such information “Confidential and Proprietary,” and 

identify the specific lines containing the information. In the event of a request for such 

information, District will make best efforts to provide notice to Consultant prior to such 

disclosure. If Consultant contends that any documents are exempt from the CPRA and 

wishes to prevent disclosure, it is required to obtain a protective order, injunctive relief 

or other appropriate remedy from a court of law in San Mateo County before the District 

is required to respond to the CPRA request. If Consultant fails to obtain such remedy 

within the time the District is required to respond to the CPRA request, District may 

disclose the requested information without any liability to Consultant. Consultant 

further agrees that it shall defend, indemnify and hold District harmless against any 

claim, action or litigation (including but not limited to all judgments, costs, and 

attorney’s fees) that may result from denial by District of a CPRA request for 

information arising from any representation, or any action (or inaction), by the 

Consultant. 

 

6. Independent Contractor. In the performance of this Agreement, it is expressly 

understood that Consultant, including each of Consultant’s employees, agents, 

subcontractors or others under Consultant’s supervision or control, is an independent 

contractor solely responsible for its own acts and omissions, and shall not be 

considered an employee of the District for any purpose. Consultant agrees to comply 

with AB5, codified at Labor Code section 2750.3, and shall indemnify, defend and 

hold harmless the District, its officials, officers, employees, and agents against any 

claim or liability, including attorneys’ fees and costs, arising in any manner related to 

this Agreement that an employee, agent or others under Consultant’s supervision or 

control was misclassified. 

 

7. Consultant Not an Agent. Except as the District may specify in writing, Consultant shall 

have no authority, express or implied, to act on behalf of District in any capacity 

whatsoever as an agent. Consultant shall have no authority, express or implied, pursuant 

to this Agreement to bind the District to any obligation whatsoever. 

 

8. Consultant Services Only. Consultant is employed to render professional services only 

and any payments made to Consultant are compensation solely for such professional 

services. 

 

9. Subcontractors. Consultant shall obtain prior approval of the District prior to 

subcontracting of any work pursuant to this Agreement. If at any time, the District 

determines any subcontractor is incompetent or unqualified, Consultant will be notified 

and will be expected to immediately cancel the subcontract. Consultant shall require 

and verify that all subcontractors maintain insurance meeting all of the requirements 

stated herein, including naming the District, its directors, officers, employees, and 

agents as additional insureds. Any modification to the insurance requirements for 

subcontractors must be agreed to by the District in writing. 

 

5-18



07/12/2023                                                                                             WBSD Standard Consultant Agreement  

10. Prevailing Wage. To the extent that the work or services to be performed under 

this Agreement may be considered a “public work” pursuant and subject to Labor 

Code section 1720 et seq., Consultant (and any sub consultant performing the work or 

services) shall conform to any and all prevailing wage requirements applicable to such 

work/and or services under this Agreement. Consultant (and any sub consultant) shall 

adhere to the prevailing wage determinations made by the Director of Industrial 

Relations (DIR) pursuant to California Labor Code Part 7, Chapter 1, Article 2, 

applicable to the work, if any. All workers employed in the execution of a public 

works contract (as such term is defined California Labor Code section 1720 et seq. and 

section 1782(d)(1)) must be paid not less than the specified prevailing wage rates for 

the type of work performed. Reference: California Labor Code sections 1720, 1774 and 

1782. 

 

Consultant agrees to be bound by the prevailing wage requirements to the extent 

applicable to the scope of work and services under this Agreement, including, but 

not limited to, the following: 

 

a. If a worker is paid less than the applicable prevailing wage rate owed for 

a calendar day (or any portion thereof), Consultant shall pay the worker the 

difference between the prevailing wage rate and the amount actually paid for each 

calendar day (or portion thereof) for which the worker(s) was paid less than the 

prevailing wage rate, as specified in Labor Code section 1775; 

 

b. Consultant shall maintain  and  make available payroll and worker  records in 

accordance with Labor Code sections 1776 and 1812; 

 

c. If Consultant employs (and/or is legally required to employ) apprentices in 

performing the work and/or services under this Agreement, Consultant shall ensure 

compliance with Labor Code section 1777.5; 

 

d. Consultant is aware of the limitations imposed on overtime work by Labor Code 

sections 1810 et seq. and shall be responsible for any penalties levied in accordance with 

Labor Code section 1813 for failing to pay required overtime wages; 

 

e. Consultant shall post a copy of the applicable wage rates at each jobsite at 

a location readily available to its workers. 

 

Any failure of Consultant and/or its sub consultant to comply with the above 

requirements relating to a public work project shall constitute a breach of this 

Agreement that excuses the District’s performance of this Agreement at the District’s 

sole and absolute option, and shall be at the sole risk of Consultant. Consultant on 

behalf of itself, any sub consultant, agree to indemnify, defend and hold harmless the 

District and its directors, officers, and employees from and against any and all claims, 

liabilities, losses, costs, expenses, attorney’s fees, damages, expenses, fines, financial 

consequences, interest, and penalties, of any kind or nature, arising from or relating to 

any failure (or alleged failure) of the Consultant and any sub consultant to pay 

5-19



07/12/2023                                                                                             WBSD Standard Consultant Agreement  

prevailing wages or to otherwise comply with the requirements of prevailing wage law 

relating to a public work. 

 

11. Registration with DIR. Consultant acknowledges that it and/ any sub consultant shall 

not be qualified to bid on, be listed in a bid proposal, subject to the requirements of 

section 4104 of the Public Contract Code, or engage in the performance of any 

contract for public work, unless currently registered with the DIR and qualified to 

perform public work pursuant to Labor Code section 1725.5 [with limited exceptions 

from this requirement for bid purposes only under Labor Code section 1771.1(a)]. A 

bid shall not be accepted nor any contract or subcontract entered into without proof of 

the Consultant or sub consultant’s current registration to perform public work. Labor 

Code section 1771.1(b). 

 

12. Dispute Resolution. The Parties agree to attempt in good faith to resolve through 

negotiation any dispute, claim or controversy arising out of or relating to this Agreement. 

Either party may initiate negotiations by providing written notice in letter form to 

the other party, setting forth the subject of the dispute and the relief requested.   

Promptly upon such notification, the Parties shall meet at a mutually agreeable time and 

place in order to exchange relevant information and perspective, and to attempt to resolve 

the dispute. In the event that no resolution is achieved, and if, but only if, the parties 

mutually agree, then prior to pursuing formal legal action, the parties shall make a good 

faith effort to resolve the dispute by non-binding mediation or negotiations between 

representatives with decision-making power, who, to the extent possible, shall not have 

had substantive involvement in the matters of the dispute. To the extent that the dispute 

involves or relates to a public works project, the Parties agree to attempt to resolve the 

dispute by complying with the claims process as set forth in Public Contract Code section 

9204(e). Parties also reserve the right to exercise any and all other remedies available. 

 

13. Force Majeure. Neither party hereto shall be considered in default in the performance 

of its obligation hereunder to the extent that the performance of any such obligation, 

except the payment of money, is prevented or delayed by an act of God, natural 

disaster, pandemic, acts of terrorism, war, or other peril, existing or future, which is 

beyond the reasonable control of the affected party and without the negligence of the 

respective Parties. . Each party hereto shall give notice promptly to the other of the 

nature and extent of any Force Majeure claimed to delay, hinder or prevent performance 

of the services under this Agreement. In the event either party is prevented or delayed 

in the performance of its respective obligation by reason of such Force Majeure, the 

only remedy is that there may be an equitable adjustment of the schedule based on 

the District’s sole discretion. 

 

14. Intellectual Property and Indemnity. Consultant represents to District that, to the best of 

Consultant’s knowledge, any Intellectual Property (including but not limited to: patent, 

patent application, trade secret, copyright and any applications or right to apply for 

registration, computer software programs or applications, tangible or intangible 

proprietary information, or any other intellectual property right) in connection with any 

services and/or products related to this Agreement does not violate or infringe upon any 

5-20



07/12/2023                                                                                             WBSD Standard Consultant Agreement  

Intellectual Property rights of any other person or entity. 

 

To the fullest extent permitted by law, Consultant agrees to indemnify, defend, and hold 

harmless District, its directors, officers, employees, and agents, from any and all claims, 

demands, actions, liabilities, damages, or expenses (including reasonable attorneys’ fees 

and costs) arising out of a claim of infringement, actual or alleged, direct or contributory, 

of any Intellectual Property rights in any way related to Consultant’s performance under 

this Agreement or to the District’s authorized intended or actual use of Consultant’s 

product or service under this Agreement. This provision shall survive termination or 

expiration of this Agreement. 

 

If any product or service becomes, or in the Consultant’s opinion is likely to become, 

the subject of a claim of infringement, the Consultant shall, at its sole expense: (i) 

provide the District the right to continue using the product or service; or (ii) replace or 

modify the product or service so that it becomes non-infringing; or (iii) if none of the 

foregoing alternatives are possible even after Consultant’s commercially reasonable 

efforts, in addition to other available legal remedies, District will have the right to return 

the product or service and receive a full or partial refund of an amount equal to the value 

of the returned product or service, less the unpaid portion of the purchase price and any 

other amounts, which may be due to the Consultant.  District shall have the right to 

retrieve its data and proprietary information at no charge prior to any return of the 

product or termination of service. 

 

15. Assignment. This Agreement may not be assigned by either the District or Consultant 

without the prior written consent of the other. 

 

16. Benefit. Except as herein provided, this Agreement shall inure to the benefit of 

the assigns, heirs, and successors of the Parties to this Agreement. 

 

17. Attorneys’ Fees. If any action at law or in equity is brought to enforce or interpret the 

provisions of this Agreement, the prevailing party shall be entitled to reasonable 

attorneys’ fees in addition to any other relief. The laws of the State of California, with 

jurisdiction in the San Mateo County Superior Court, shall govern all matters relating to 

the validity, interpretation, and effect of this Agreement and any authorized or alleged 

changes, the performance of any of its terms, as well as the rights and obligations of 

Consultant and the District. 

 

18. Complete Agreement. This Agreement, along with any attachments, is the full and 

complete integration of the parties’ agreement with respect to the matters addressed 

herein, and that this Agreement supersedes any previous written or oral agreements 

between the parties with respect to the matters addressed herein. 

 

19. Amendments. This Agreement may not be amended in any respect except by way of a 

written instrument which expressly references and identifies this particular Agreement, 

which expressly states that its purpose is to amend this particular Agreement, and which 

is duly executed by the District and Consultant. Consultant acknowledges that no such 

5-21



07/12/2023                                                                                             WBSD Standard Consultant Agreement  

amendment shall be effective until approved and authorized by the District’s authorized 

representative. 

 

20. Severability. The unenforceability, invalidity or illegality of any provision(s) of this 

Agreement shall not render the other provisions unenforceable, invalid or illegal. 

 

21. Waiver. Waiver by any party of any portion of this Agreement shall not constitute a 

waiver of the same or any other portion hereof. 

 

22. Governing Law. This Agreement shall be governed by and interpreted in accordance 

with California law. 

 

23. Contract Interpretation. Each party acknowledges that it has reviewed this Agreement 

and that the normal rule of construction to the effect that any ambiguities are to 

be resolved against the drafting party shall not be employed in the interpretation of 

this Agreement. 

 

24. Notices.  If either party shall desire or is required to give notice to the other such notice 

shall be given in writing, via email and concurrently delivered by overnight Federal 

Express [or priority U.S. Mail], addressed to recipient as follows: 

 

To District: 

West Bay Sanitary District 

Sergio Ramirez 

500 Laurel Street 

Menlo Park, Ca 94025 

sramirez@westbaysanitary.org 

(650) 321-0384 

 

To CONSULTANT: 

DES Architects + Engineers, Inc.  

John C. Fullerton  

399 Bradford Street, Ste 300 

Redwood City, CA 94063 

jfullerton@des-ae.com  

 (650) 364-6453 

Changes to the above information shall be given to the other party in writing ten (10) 

business days before the change is effective.  

 

25. Counterparts.  This Agreement may be executed in counterparts, and when each party       

has signed and delivered at least one such counterpart, each one shall be deemed an 

original and, when taken together with other signed counterparts, shall constitute one 

Agreement, which shall be binding on and effective regarding all parties. A scanned, 

electronic, facsimile, or other copy of a party’s signature shall have the same force and 

effect as an original signature. 

 

26. ACKNOWLEDGMENT 

 

By their signatures below, the Parties acknowledge that they have each read and 

understand the terms of this Agreement, and are authorized to execute this Agreement 

to legally obligate their respective representatives, agents, successors and assigns to 

comply with the provisions of this Agreement. 

 

5-22

mailto:jfullerton@des-ae.com


07/12/2023                                                                                             WBSD Standard Consultant Agreement  

[SIGNATURES ON FOLLOWING PAGE] 

  

5-23



07/12/2023                                                                                             WBSD Standard Consultant Agreement  

 

 

WEST BAY SANITARY DISTRICT                    DES ARCHITECTS + ENGINEERS, INC. 

 

 

 

 

 

     By: ___________________________                           By: _________________________ 

           Sergio Ramirez, General Manager                                 John C. Fullerton,  

               Associate Principal/Project Executive 

 

 

     Date: __________________           Date: ____________________ 

 

 

     APPROVED AS TO FORM 

 

 

    Date: ____________________ 

    Anthony Condotti, General Counsel 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

5-24



07/12/2023                                                                                             WBSD Standard Consultant Agreement  

 

 

 
 

EXHIBIT 

“A” 

SCOPE 

OF 

WORK  

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

5-25



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
TTTHHHIIISSS   PPPAAAGGGEEE   LLLEEEFFFTTT   IIINNNTTTEEENNNTTTIIIOOONNNAAALLLLLLYYY   BBBLLLAAANNNKKK   

5-26



 

 

Report to the District Board for the Regular Meeting of November 11, 2023 
 

WEST BAY SANITARY DISTRICT 
AGENDA ITEM 6 

 
 

 
To: Board of Directors 
 
From: Debra Fisher, Finance Manager 
 
Subject: Consider Authoring Certain District Officers to Affect the 

Deposit and Withdrawal of Funds from the Local Agency 
Investment Fund  

 
 
 
Background 

The Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) requires a resolution to make any changes in 
the titles or names of signers on the LAIF account.   Persons authorized to deposit or 
withdraw funds can be by position and/or individual name.  The LAIF resolution has 
been amended to include the current titles and persons holding those positions. 
 
Changes to resolution include updating to current LAIF template, as well as the 
following changes in authorized persons: 

• District Manager updated to General Manager  

• Removed Former Projects & IT Manager position  

• Added Operations Superintendent  
 
 
Fiscal Impact  

None. 
 

Recommendation 

Finance Manager recommends the Board adopt the amended LAIF Resolution. 
 

6-1



 

 

 

RESOLUTION NO.   (2023) 
 
 

 

A Resolution Amending Resolution No. 2197(2020), Resolution No. 

1599(06), and Resolution No. 1664 (2008), A Resolution Authorizing 

Investment of West Bay Sanitary District Monies in Local Agency 

Investment Fund 

 
****** 

 

Whereas, pursuant to Chapter 730 of the Statutes of 1976 Section 16429.1 was added 
to the California Government Code to create a Local Agency Investment Fund in the 
State Treasury for the deposit of money of a local agency for purposes of investment 
by the State Treasurer; and 

Whereas, the District Board does hereby finds that the deposit and withdrawal of 
money in the Local Agency Investment Fund in accordance with the provisions of 
Section 16429. 1 et. seq. for the purpose of investment as provided therein is in the best 
interests of the West Bay Sanitary District. 

 

Now therefore, be it resolved that the District Board does hereby authorize the 

deposit and withdrawal of West Bay Sanitary District monies in the Local Agency 

Investment Fund in the State Treasury in accordance with Government Code section 

16429.1 et. seq. for the purpose of investment as provided therein. 

 
Be it further resolved, as follows:  

Section 1. The following West Bay Sanitary District officers holding the title(s) specified 
herein below or their successors in office are each hereby authorized to order the 
deposit or withdrawal of monies in the Local Agency Investment Fund and may execute 
and deliver any and all documents necessary or advisable in order to effectuate the 
purposes of this resolution and the transactions contemplated hereby: 

______________________ 
(signature) 

Sergio Ramirez 

General Manager 

______________________ 
(signature) 

Roy Thiele-Sardina 

Treasurer 

_____________________ 
(signature) 

Fran Dehn 

President 

_______________________ 
(signature) 

Robert Hulsmann 

Operations Superintendent 

 

_______________________ 
(signature) 

Jed Beyer 

Water Quality Manager

Section 2. This resolution shall remain in full force and effect until rescinded by West Bay 
Sanitary District Board by resolution and a copy of the resolution rescinding this 
resolution is filed with the State Treasurer’s Office. 
 

 
' 

6-2



 

 

Passed and adopted by the District Board of West Bay Sanitary District at a 

Regular meeting thereof held on the 8th day of November 2023 by the following 
vote: 

 

Ayes:  

Noes: 

Abstain:  

Absent:  

 
 

President o f  the District Board of 

the West Bay Sanitary District, 

San Mateo County, State of 

California 

 

Attest: 
 
 

 
Secretary of the District Board of 

the West Bay Sanitary District, 

San Mateo County, State of 

California  
 

 
 

 

 
 
 

 
 

 

6-3



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
TTTHHHIIISSS   PPPAAAGGGEEE   LLLEEEFFFTTT   IIINNNTTTEEENNNTTTIIIOOONNNAAALLLLLLYYY   BBBLLLAAANNNKKK   

6-4



        WEST BAY SANITARY DISTRICT 
  AGENDA ITEM 7 

 
 

 
 
To: Board of Directors 
 
From: Sergio Ramirez, General Manager 
 
Subject: Discussion and Direction on the West Bay and Sharon Heights 

Recycled Water Facility 

 
A discussion will be held on the Sharon Heights Recycled Water Facility and other events 
related to the recycled water plant. The Board will have the opportunity to provide 
direction to staff and legal counsel.  
 
 

Recycled Water Facility Production Data: 

2020 Treated Delivered 

August 8.8MG 8.2MG 

September 8.2MG 5.1MG 

October 7.4MG 4.5MG 

November  5MG 1.4MG 

December 4.7MG .55MG 

2021 Treated Delivered 

January 4.8MG .23MG 

February 4.4MG .13MG 

March 5.9MG 1.8MG 

April 8.5MG 7.6MG 

May 9.3.MG 8.2MG 

June 9.8MG 8.7MG 

July 9.5MG 9.1MG 

August 9.4MG 9.0MG 

September  9.1MG   6.9MG* 

October 7.6MG    2.6MG** 

November 5.2MG 0 

December  4.7MG 0 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Report to the District Board for the Regular Meeting of October 11, 2023 
 
 

7-1



 
 

2022 Treated Delivered 

January  4.4MG 97,000 gallons 

February 4.4MG 1.5MG 

March 6.6MG 3.5MG 

April  7.6MG 3.8MG 

May  9.2MG 7.4MG 

June 9.8MG 8.7MG 

July 9.6MG 8.1MG 

August  9.2MG 8.1MG 

September  8.6MG 6.7MG 

October 7.9MG 4.6MG 

November  5.9MG 310,000 gallons 

December  5.4MG 154,690 gallons 
 
 

2023 Treated Delivered 

January  5MG 0 gallons 

February 3.3MG 0 gallons 

March 3.5MG 0 gallons 

April  4.9MG 32k gals. Dust Control 

May  5.1MG 432k gals. Dust Control 

June  4.8MG 456k gals. Dust Control 

July 6.2MG 1.05MG Dust Control 

August  8.1MG 
2.7MG 

(+ 1.5 MG  Dust Control) 

September  8.4MG 
4MG 

(+ 1.04 MG  Dust Control) 

October 9.6MG 7.4MG 
 
 
 

*  Sharon Heights substantially tapered off their water usage for September which is the reason for the large 
discrepancy between treated and delivered. 
** Treatment was reduced in the second half of the month. Rain in late October and an irrigation equipment 
malfunctions caused water delivery to decrease.  
 
 

The following is a disclosure statement required for any document, written report or brochure prepared in 
whole or in part pursuant to the Finance Agreement with the State Water Resources Control Board for the 
West Bay Sanitary District Recycled Water Project - Sharon Heights:  Funding for this project has been 
provided in full or in part through an agreement with the State Water Resources Control Board. California’s 
Clean Water State Revolving Fund is capitalized through a variety of funding sources, including grants from 
the United States Environmental Protection Agency and state bond proceeds. The contents of this 
document do not necessarily reflect the views and policies of the foregoing, nor does mention of trade 
names or commercial products constitute endorsement or recommendation for use. 

 
 
 

7-2



        WEST BAY SANITARY DISTRICT 
  AGENDA ITEM 8 

 
 

 
 
To: Board of Directors 
 
From: Sergio Ramirez, General Manager 
 
Subject: Discussion and Direction on the Bayfront Recycled Water Project 

and Status Update 

 
A discussion will be held on the District’s Bayfront Recycled Water Projects and other 
events related to the recycled water projects including financing, environmental review, 
design/build issues and grant applications.  
 
The Board will have the opportunity to provide direction to staff and general counsel.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Report to the District Board for the Regular Meeting of November 8, 2023 

 

8-1



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
TTTHHHIIISSS   PPPAAAGGGEEE   LLLEEEFFFTTT   IIINNNTTTEEENNNTTTIIIOOONNNAAALLLLLLYYY   BBBLLLAAANNNKKK   

8-2



            WEST BAY SANITARY DISTRICT 
AGENDA ITEM 9 

 
 

 
 
To: Board of Directors 
 
From: Sergio Ramirez, General Manager 
 
Subject: Report, Discussion, and Direction on South Bayside Waste 

Management Authority (SBWMA) including the Solid Waste 
Franchise Re-Assignment 

 
The District’s representative to South Bayside Waste Management Authority (SBWMA), 
President Fran Dehn, will report on any pertinent items regarding SBWMA business. 
General Manager Ramirez will report and seek direction on the solid waste franchise re-
assignment.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Report to the District Board for the Regular Meeting of November 8, 2023 

 

9-1



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
TTTHHHIIISSS   PPPAAAGGGEEE   LLLEEEFFFTTT   IIINNNTTTEEENNNTTTIIIOOONNNAAALLLLLLYYY   BBBLLLAAANNNKKK   

9-2



        WEST BAY SANITARY DISTRICT 
 AGENDA ITEM 10 

 
 
 

 
 
To: Board of Directors 
 
From: Sergio Ramirez, General Manager 
 
Subject: Report and Discussion on Silicon Valley Clean Water (SVCW) 

Plant 

 
The District’s representative to Silicon Valley Clean Water (SVCW), Commissioner 
George Otte, will report on pertinent items regarding SVCW Operations, CIP and 
Finance. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Report to the District Board for the Regular Meeting of November 8, 2023 
 

10-1



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
TTTHHHIIISSS   PPPAAAGGGEEE   LLLEEEFFFTTT   IIINNNTTTEEENNNTTTIIIOOONNNAAALLLLLLYYY   BBBLLLAAANNNKKK   

10-2


	Agenda November 8, 2023
	3A - Minutes October 11, 2023
	3B - October 2023 FAR
	3C - WBSD Operations and Maintenance Report – October 2023
	3D - Town of Los Altos Hills - Operations and Maintenance Report for WorkPerformed by WBSD – October 2023
	3E - Town of Woodside Operations and Maintenance Report for WorkPerformed by WBSD – October 2023
	3F - Consider Approving District Treasury ReportFirst Quarter FY 2023-24
	3G - Consider Approving Resolution of Intention to Annex CertainTerritory (118 Mapache Drive Portola Valley) to the West BaySanitary District On-Site Wastewater Disposal Zone and toEstablish the Date and Time of Public Hearing
	3H - Consider Approving Resolution of Intention to Annex CertainTerritory (350 Grove Drive Portola Valley) to the West BaySanitary District On-Site Wastewater Disposal Zone and toEstablish the Date and Time of Public Hearing
	4 - General Manager’s Report
	5 - Consider Authorizing General Manager to Enter Into anAgreement for Design for the Proposed Reclaimed WaterInfrastructure Within the O’Brien Drive and Menlo Park Labs(previously Menlo Business Park (MBP)) in Menlo Park
	6 - Consider Authoring Certain District Officers to Affect theDeposit and Withdrawal of Funds from the Local AgencyInvestment Fund
	7 - Discussion and Direction on the West Bay and Sharon HeightsRecycled Water Facility

	8 - Discussion and Direction on the Bayfront Recycled Water Projectand Status Update
	9 - Report, Discussion, and Direction on South Bayside WasteManagement Authority (SBWMA) including the Solid WasteFranchise Re-Assignment
	10  - Report and Discussion on Silicon Valley Clean Water (SVCW)Plant



